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Who are we?

Incorporation

- We, the Saudi Lime Industries Company, a Saudi joint
stock company established in Riyadh, KSA in 1395 H
(corresponding to 1977) as a limited liability company
under the name of the Saudi Company for Limestone
Sand Bricks and Building Materials. Subseguently, it
turned into the Saudi Lime Industries Company, a closed
joint stock company, as of 1432 H corresponding to 2011.

- By the end of year 2022, the Capital Market Authority
issued its approval to list the Company’s shares in the
parallel market “Nomu”. Measures and procedures are
currently underway to convert the Company into a public
joint stock company during the subsequent period of year
2023.

Company Objectives

- The Company was essentially incorporated to produce
quicklime, hydrated lime, sand lime bricks, powder
and crushed multi-size limestone, calcium carbonate,
dolomite and dololime. These products are traded and
distributed inside and outside KSA. With this in mind, the
Company practices mining, exploiting quarries and other
activities that enables it to obtain the raw materials
necessary for the manufacture of lime and sandy lime
bricks. The Company conducts its activities that shall
be compatible with the applicable regulations and laws,
and after the necessary licenses are obtained from the
competent authorities, if any.

- Owing to more than four decades of continuous growth,
dedicated efforts and hard work, we have become one
of the pioneering companies in the lime industry in the
region alongside with the production of bricks and sand
lime blocks.

- We have accomplished a firm progress and prevailed in
the provision and supply of limestone and its derivatives of
quick lime, hydrated lime and calcium carbonate for many
vital industries and sectors locally and internationally ,
for example but not limited to GCC, the Middle East and
Africa.

We assume that we have the skill and infrastructure to
be a successful competitor in the leading markets. We
are proud to have a proven track record of the most
challenging transactions implemented across the region,
and that we can provide comprehensive support and
supply solutions for our product applications.



Our Strategy

Our Enduring Care :@

“We believe that our pride is rooted in a feeling of
belonging and love, and that the highest degree is
accessible by the adoption of our motherland and
building our future within our grasp.”

Values i?

“Our values carry over ideas that positively affect
our behavior and the way we interact with individuals
and communities. They reflect the deepest ideas
and feelings that we can strive towards, and that
shape our culture and society.” They are interrelated
values, starting from the national spirit until reaching
perfection.
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Mission @V

“To participate in the development and expansion of
the limestone industry, by being pioneers in terms
of quality and leadership, to be the customers’ first
choice”

o
Vision Hﬂ@g

“To contribute to the creation of sustainable products
to build a better world”

G RE)
rf;“‘o @
National Spirit Sustainability Credibility
(o X¢) frey.
1 Y o000 |
i i
' N i N
Growth Organized Excellence

Teamwork
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Chairman’s Message

The Company’s Board of Directors is grateful to provide to the
shareholders the Board of Directors’ report regarding the
results of the fiscal year ending on 31st of December, 2022.
This report reflects the Company’s achievements within a
year which is considered the actual test of the flexibility of
our strategy and its relevance to changes in the new reality.
We were able to add new achievements in an uncertain
market and we continued to play our role to achieve our goal
of being the strongest and the best in the market. During
this year, we have embarked more aggressively to achieve
our Company'’s desired goals. We have come a long way in
promoting the Company’s position as an industry leader in a
commitment to our social and environmental responsibility.

A new birth and a step forward to a bright future

Year 2022 was a new hirth for the Company, in which the
identity was completely changed and we have embarked with
a new identity through which the spirit of the Company is
clearly expressed in line with our expectations not only to
develop the work environment and concepts, but also towards
optimizing returns to all stakeholders within a framework of
high standards of governance and transparency compatible
with legal requirements. One of our strengths is to shed
light on our operations on a long-term standpoint to support
and enhance shareholder and stakeholder trust. We have
developed goals and followed up on their accomplishment in
addition to aligning them to ensure that our company is on
the right track with the purpose of realization of our vision
of fulfilling additional sustainable profits on invested capital.

Financial performance

Therefore, the fiscal year 2022 experienced a robust
financial and operational performance as set forth in
the financial statements, in spite of the challenges in the
economic environment, which were accounted by the high
cost of production inputs in general and the uncertainty
of the market's future expectations in particular. We have
reinforced our existence in the local and foreign markets
and have built up our business scope increasing our ability
to engage with new customers and enter different markets
locally and internationally.
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Integration with the Parallel Market (Nomu)

One of our substantial strategic goals that we developed
since the breakthrough of the current session of the Board
of Directors is the listing of the Company’'s shares in the
Parallel Market “Nomu”. Many challenges are encountered by
us. Such challenges could have threatened the project, but
fortunately we were able to overcome them and keep going
on the right road. At the end of the year, success was the
greatest prize for our efforts. The Company is working to
proceed other procedures during the first half of year 2023
in order to be listed on the stock market.

Future Outlook

We believe that our efforts of enhancing our essential
investments and focusing on sustainable value will yield
results in the coming years. Additionally, the success of the
listing project is anticipated to have a positive impact on the
Company’s performance, strengthening its position among
stakeholders and enhancing its position to be one of the
leading companies in the region by providing added value to
the economy of KSA through a Saudi product holding the label
“Made in KSA”

And finally,

On behalf of the members of the Board of Directors, | would
like to express my gratitude and thanks to the shareholders
and all the supporting parties for their support and trust.
| also send my sincere regards to the executive team and
all the Company employees for their commitment and loyalty.

Abdulaziz bin Majid Alkassabi

Chairman of the Board of Directors
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CEO Message

Our Esteemed Shareholders

| am grateful to be gathered with you through this annual
report on behalf of the Executive Management and employees
of the Company to shed light on the Company’s significant
achievements in year 2022 and our plans for the next stage.
Those plans would not have been possible without your
persistent support and trust that constitute the backbone of
our continuous effort.

It was a year of success and achievement in spite of many and
various challenges. In this regard, the Saudi Lime Industries
Co. received the award of the best company in their field from
the Saudi Companies Summit held for the first time in KSA.
Rather, the greatest thing is to obtain the approval of the
Saudi Capital Market Authority to list the Company’s shares
in the Parallel Market “Nomu”. Our team’s strong belief
in the Company’s value was one of the significant reasons
which made us ready for the challenge in a way ensuring the
Company's proper status as a market leader.

The challenges were different especially within the scope of
business operation, including the drastic rise in production
inputs, the impact on global supply chains and the explosive
increase in transportation costs. The anticipated natural
result was the decline in revenues due to the negative global
events affecting all sectors, but we properly succeeded in
overcoming these crises having a knock-on effect on the
financial statements.

Despite the disappointing surrounding circumstances, our
Company was able to achieve high operating revenues.
Under such circumstances, it was necessary to take final
and crucial decisions. In this context , we bear the results,
and everyone exerted the required efforts to maintain
the process of production by relying on the guidance of
the Company Board of Directors, in addition to the efforts
exerted by the Executive Management and employees of the
Company.

Initially, we arranged the Company from the inside, reviewed
all procedures, restructured and developed the necessary
actions, and put in place the necessary regulations to ensure
sustainable frameworks to work towards the larger goal
of enhancing the Company’s revenues by all means from
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our main fixed operations in addition to supporting its
performance in the markets. Those arrangements provide
a great benefit to shareholders and the KSA economy as a
whole. Thanks to Allah, we were able to raise the Company’s
operating revenues resulted from production operations
and increase profitability during year 2022 by seeking to
increase production and achieve customer requests. We
also implemented a huge project that helps in digitizing the
Company’s operations through the best available programs
for resource planning (ERP), which will contribute to the
integration of all business processes such as Accounting,
Sales, Customer Relationship Management, Marketing,
Accurate Data Analysis, and the creation of reports and
forecasts that help in taking the appropriate decisions.

On the contrary to the shrinking markets, we have understood
the conditions of customers and reached solutions that
guarantee our rights and help to support our customers and
keep them as partners of success.

Undoubtedly, reading the Company’s financial statements
illustrates the extent of success compared to the previous
year 2021, as a result of the Company’s adopted palicy to
achieve a balanced and sustainable rate of operating costs
and to improve the profitability of the Company and raise its
rates of return.

To conclude,

| would like to send my sincere regards to the Chairman
and members of the Board of Directors of the Company
for their endless support and constant trust. | would also
like to extend my thanks and appreciation to the Company
shareholders and all the partners of success. | would like to
send my thanks, praise and appreciation to all the executive
teams in the Company for their loyalty and tireless efforts
in leading, implementing and accomplishing the Company’s
business with all creativity and leadership, and for their
constant commitment to the strategic plans developed to
achieve the goals and aspirations =of our shareholders and
valued customers.

Ahmed Salim Elewa
Chief Executive Officer
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“From A Land to Land”

We extract raw materials from the land and
exploit them for our own benefit. We look
forward to tomorrow in a steadfast spirit,
seeking over the next year and beyond

to maintain our breakthrough, broaden
investment in the development of its human
resources, implement its operations in
accordance with the highest standards of
safety and reliability in order to achieve
long-term growth based on sustainability,
and finally to provide the best return on
shareholder investments

Company Paolicy
and Objectives

The Company’s methodology, since its establishment in year
1977, was centered on a set of well-established principles
that no industrial entity can continue without complying with.
Those principals resulted in the trust of customers in our
products, the trust of our customers in the strength of the
Company, and the trust of investors and their support for
the administrative decisions. We are always proud of this
precious trust, they are the partners of success and the
pillar that leads us to further growth and development until
we become one of the largest suppliers on a large scale not
only within KSA, but at the level of GCC and Africa.

Quality

The Company is committed to the highest standards
of quality, both for the product and for technical and
administrative practices, which is our obligation towards
our partners. Our success is measured in terms of how
well we meet the requirements of our partners. Thoughtful
planning, preparation and rigorous application of our quality
assurance measures optimize the occurrence of mistakes.
In this regard, we attract experts, enhance efforts and
document them with certificates that many people aspire to
obtain, including:

- (1S09001) International Standard that identifies the
Requirements of a Quality Management System: It helps
to provide products and services that steadily fulfill
customer and legal requirements and is considered the
most internationally recognized standard for quality
management

- (1S014001) International Standard for an Effective
Environmental Management System: It helps to decline
wasteful use of resources and unnecessary expenses

- (1S045001) International Standard for Occupational
Health and Safety: It protects employees and visitors
from work-related accidents and damages, and to
provide a safe and healthy work-place.



Commitment

The Saudi Lime Industries Co. is committed to the legal and
regulatory principles and rules within the framework of the
Corporate Governance Law. We ensure that all works and
documents are within a legal framework. The Company also
has its governance manual, which is always keen to adhere
to its provisions. The Company pledges to apply the best
standards of compliance in all its activities and business in
harmony with the Corporate Governance Regulations, the
Rules on the Offer of Securities and Continuing Obligations
issued by the Capital Market Authority and other relevant laws
and regulations. The Company also updates these policies on
an ongoing basis subject to any update or amendment made
to the laws and regulations.

The Board of Directors shall provide continuous support with
its committees, represented by the Audit Committee, the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Executive
Committee, to enhance compliance with the Corporate
Governance Regulations and ensure the review of the
application of those regulations.

SL

aiagsunll aspdll
ayall al_clinll

Annual report 2022

13



14

SL

angsull aSpill
ayall al_clinll

Annual Report 2022

Environmental Protection and Safety

Our Company is committed to protect the environment
and preserve natural resources. Products, processes and
methods are subject to environmental risk assessments and
constant development to prevent adverse environmental
impacts. We also comply with health and environmental
standards under the supervision of the concerned authorities
and we believe that the protection of the environment is a
goal that we must adhere to.

We aim to ensure and continually develop the safety and
health of our employees at work-place by preventing
the occurrence hazards. All accidents can be avoided if
successful occupational safety measures are based on
employee involvement and participation. Indeed, all staff
members are responsible for both themselves and their
colleagues.

The Company also seeks to be an organization that is
environmentally conscious and aware of the damage it may
cause to its surroundings. As a consequence, the Company
continues to invest in order to promote its slogan “Clean
Environment for Our Homeland” as part of its commitment
to social responsibility towards the environment and the
hameland, where the Company allocates part of its industrial
investments to implement an integrated policy to preserve
the environment from installing filters on all production lines
and periodic maintenance to achieve leadership in supporting
KSA's vision to reduce harmful emissions. Therefore, all the
Company’'s factories started to raise their efficiency, in
addition to adopting internal policies that comply with the
Saudi environmental regulations and laws.

Furthermore, emissions are strictly controlled using
international standards and best practices. Accordingly,
production lines at the Company’s sites were equipped with
continuous emission monitoring systems to measure harmful
emissions such as dust, sulphur dioxide, nitrogen oxides,
carbon monoxide, oxygen, total organic hydrocarbons,
hydrogen fluoride and hydrogen chloride. A specialized and
gualified Company from the General Authority of Meteorology
and Environmental Protection was contracted with to carry
out semi-annual measurements and an environmental record
of the work sites.

The Company also conducts gradual measures to reduce
carbon dioxide emissions through a long-term plan to reduce
fuel consumption by improving the capacity of production
lines and replacing traditional fuels with alternative fuels,
such as those derived from household solid waste and
biomass fuels.

With its 2030 Sustainability Commitments, the Company aims
to reach sustainable development goals and address global
sacial, economic and environmental challenges. Our Company

leads the mining sector to play a vital role as an engine of
innovation and technological development and a key driver of
economic growth and employment.

Based on the abaove, the main objective is to create a healthy
and safe working environment in all sites and buildings by
taking the necessary steps to avoid accidents and injuries,
as well as launching communication initiatives in order to
spread a preventive culture of safety and health. Moreover,
the Company aims to establish a trust-based relationship
with employees, which will contribute to improving workplace
safety dynamics. In order to achieve its objectives, the
Company conducted many safety training sessions and
induction hours for employees in order to implement safety
palicies, emergency preparedness, risk assessment and
safety procedures, including:

- An occupational safety and health system has been put
in place to protect employees from health injuries while
on duty.

- A professionally qualified safety officer has been
appainted with an impressive knowledge and experience.
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All Company sites are surveyed to ensure that all safety
regulations and guidelines are applied.

To ensure that the procedures are compatible with
international standards and the requirements of the
General Authority of Meteorology and Environmental
Protection, the Company contracted for periodic
measurements of dust, gas and noise emissions.

Chemical and physical analyses and tests are conducted
on our products in our laboratories in accordance with
the highest international standards such as ASTM, BS
and DIN.

The factory is restructured in order to keep updated with
different modern internal traffic rules.

A strategic planis developed to start a distinct replanting
project, which reflects the Company’s concern for the
environment.
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Human capital

Thanks to the qualifications, information, motivation of all
employees and other factors that we have in our Company,
we become a successful leading company in this field.
Accoringly, one of our priorities is to keep employees well
updated and supported by providing them with the required
knowledge and skills by means of training, hiring qualified
cadres and enhancing the teamwork. Those factors are
our first investment in addition to the full commitment to
the localization of human resources subject to KSA vision,
for example, in engineering, accounting and sales as well as
technicians with accredited qualifications.

Partners of Success

Transparency is highly committed with all partners of
success so as to maintain powerful balanced relations with
customers and suppliers and build credible networks with
investors to preserve all parties’ rights in order to ensure
a continued growth and support to the Company’s business.

©)

22
e

Quality

Commitment

Safety and Environment Protection

Human Capital

Success Partners

@ B B &
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Executive Summary

Overview

The Company’s performance during year 2022 was outstanding due to the positive results reached at all levels. We are proud of
the significant results accomplished by the Company that are proven by the dynamism and perseverance of our team members.
Those remarkable results are the main driver behind our successful performance in a way makes the future predictable under
these promising circumstances that await our beloved country with the wise leadership. Subsequently, we are responsible to
take advantage of these opportunities as appropriately and effectively as possible, and to raise our contributions and profit base.

Operational Proficiency Financial performance

- 695,000 metric tons of lime and calcium carbonate are - Total Sales amounted to SAR 142.4 million (2021: SAR
produced. 131.6 million).

- 50,000 cubic meters of bricks and blocks are produced. - Net profit amounted to SAR 15.8 million (2021: a net

- A positive and exceptional feedback is received from our profit reached SAR 11.26 million).

customers.

Human Capital

- Highly efficient and skillful human capital of 329
employees.

- Saudization of 29% of qualified national specializations.

- Training sessions for more than 500 hours.

- Fully committed to the instructions issued by the relevant
ministries in addition to the innovative and front-runner
initiatives.

16



NS ST = = \ R = S\ S\ = DI
I,

NSER S a2 M = R = S\ S

NSH e SN2 M = R = S\ S

NSTR S =\ \ D= R\ S

S\ A A\ I\ I\ S
o




SL

aiagsull aspdll
ayall al_clinll

Annual Report 2022

Net Income (In SAR Millions)

16

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Sales (In SAR Millions)

2022 142
2021 131

2020 130

2019 141

2018 138

Shareholders’ Equity (In SAR Millions)

2022 237
2021 231
2020 220

2019 247

2018 272
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Carbonate Sector (Limestone)

“This sector includes the supply of different sizes of limestone through crushing, grinding and sorting of such sizes to fulfill all
industries”

Our limestone quarry in the region is of good quality, produced in a variety of sizes to satisfy a wide range of industrial and non-
industrial applications.

THE MOST COMMONLY USED APPLICATIONS:

O-I 02 Production capacity
Cement industry, building Water treatment and 1 8 0 0 0 0
materials, civil works and filtration. Y 4
roads pavement tons annually
Thousand
03 04 metric tons 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
X X Production
Nourishment of poultry Glass industry, Volume 157 178 154 169 174 180
and animals as well as agriculture, oil and gas.
feed supplements. Sales Volume 168 163 148 166 168 140

©% The production is procesed under accurate
and precise supervision by a team of
highly qualified chemists, engineers and
technicians around the clock. 33

20
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Limestone Industries Sector

“It includes the manufacture of quick and hydrated lime as well dololime in all sizes packed through all types of packaging”.

1. Quick lime

In commercial perspective, calcium oxide is defined as quick lime. It is enormously used in multiple industries and it results from
heating high clarity limestone in vertical furnaces under high temperature.

THE MOST COMMONLY USED APPLICATIONS

01 02

Metals, iron and steel The chemical industry
industries basically

03 04

Food industries Mining, gold, fiberglass
and water treatment

Production capacity

450,000 " N

tons annually o

Thousand £ \
metric tons 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 . i

Production 245 343 345 311 300 311 -
Volume

Sales Volume 190 297 284 254 269 247
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2. Hydrated lime

Hydrated lime is produced by extinguishing quick lime in
which a specific amount of water is mixed with powdered
quick lime.

THE MOST COMMONLY USED APPLICATIONS:

01 02

Treatment of petroleum
waste flue gases and
mercury removal

Treatment of drinking
water and sewage

03 04

Mining industry, sugar
industry, leather industry
and chemical industry

Treatment of animal
waste, pathogens and
odors

Production capacity

70,000

tons annually

Thousand
metric tons 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Production 46 45 86 50 52 58
Volume

Sales Volume 42 46 54 52 54 50

Bricks and Blocks Sector

“It includes the manufacture of sand building blocks and
bricks used for cladding the facades of buildings by using
limestone and sand”

Saudi Lime's block and lime sand brick products have a good-
looking architectural appearance. They are well-known for
their durability when exposed to high pressures. Additionally,
they are anideal solution for a lower construction cost due to
the fact that they do not require additional clams or coatings
in addition to its excellence in effective thermal and acoustic
insulation and long life.

Production capacity

180,000

tons annually

Thousand
metric tons 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Production 73 44 35 50 52 50
Volume

Sales Volume 83 37 37 44 47 49
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Performance Summary

% Sales (In SAR Millions)

2018 2019 2020

138 141 130

254 _ -
g:(:):}{é} Operating Income (In SAR Millions)

2018 2019 2020
@ Total Assets (In SAR Millions)
2018 2019 2020

340 326 292

OOOOO

2018 2019 2020

616 600 580

24

2021

131

2021

10

2021

308

2021

>78

2022

142

2022

16

2022

315

2022

952
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Sales

The Company’s sales in year 2022 were SAR 142 million, which witnessed an increase of about SAR11 million compared to SAR131
million in year 2021 (at a growth rate of 8%). Basically, this increase is because of the rise in domestic sales by SAR10 million at
a growth rate of 9%. In contrast, export sales preserved year 2021 levels by about SAR24 million.

Sales (In SAR Millions)

142
141

138

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Local Sales Vs. Export Sales (In SAR Millions)

2019 2020 2021 2022

LOCAL B EXPORT M

25
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Sales Composition by Geographical Distribution during Year 2022

Export
16.5%

~

Local
83.5%

Export Sales Composition by Geographical Distribution during Year 2022

Oman Oatar

8.3% 0.1%
\

South Africa ‘

21.6%\

UAE
1.2% —

Jordan 6.9% /J

Bahrain
61.1

Yemen 0.1%

Sudan 0.7

Domestic Sales by Regional Distribution

Region Revenue (In SAR)
Riyadh and Central Region 79,583,088
Jeddah and Western Region 21,558,548
Dammam and Eastern Region 7,859,843

Al Madinah Al Munawwarah Region 7,654,421
Jizan and the Southern Region 770,762

Hail and the Northern Region 255,900
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Operating Profits

Operating profits amounted to SAR 16 million, with an increase of SAR 6 million at a growth rate of 60% compared to SAR 10
million achieved in year 2021, and that was due to the high value of sales and low operating costs.

Operation Profits (In SAR Millions)

22

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Net Profit

In year 2022, the Company’s net profit amounted to SAR 16 million, which means that an increase of SARE million is experienced
in comparison to SAR 10 million net profit achieved in year 2021, and that was due to the high operating profits.

Net Profit (Loss) (In SAR Millions)

19
” I
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

27
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Assets

The Company’s total assets are about SAR 315 million, which means an increase of SAR 7 million at a growth rate of 2% compared
to SAR 308 million in year 2021, and that was due to the increase in fixed assets, prepaid expenses and other debit balances by
about SAR 10 million and SAR 3 million, respectively.

Total Assets (In SAR Millions)

340
330
308
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Subsidiaries

Saudi Insulating Brick Co.

Saudi Insulating Brick Limited Co. is an affiliate company
established in KSA and headquartered in Riyadh. The
company’s capital is SAR 100 million, in which the Saudi
Lime Industries Co. owns 50% thereof. Its activity is mainly
summed up in the production of bricks and concrete block
vacuum (light). Whereas the plant has stopped production
since year 2018, the shareholders have agreed to sell the

assets of Riyadh and Jeddah plants. The assets of the Saudi
Insulation Brick Co. have already been sold and the company ; f =
is under liquidation
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Shareholders’ equity and liabilities

Sharehalders’ equity is about SAR 237 million, which means an increase of SAR 6 million at a growth rate of 3% compared to SAR
231 million in year 2021, and that was due to the increase in the retained earnings directly affected by the net profits achieved
during year 2022.

Shareholders’ Equity (In SAR Millions)

272
247 237
I I ] i L

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

The liabilities are about SAR 78 million, which means an increase of SAR 1 million by about 1% compared to SAR 77 million in year
2021, and that was due to the decrease in long-term loans by SAR 19 million, as well as the increase in accounts payable by SAR
3 million, and the increase in the dues of the Saudi Insulating Brick Limited Co. by about SAR 19 million.

Liabilties (In SAR Millions)

78
77
71
] I
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

29
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Summary of Long-Term Loans

Bank 2019 2020 2021 2022
Arab Bank 9,000,000 15,000,000 31,800,000 14,328,818
Al-Inma Bank 3,375,000 5,448,144 2,290,416 281,882
Total 12,375,000 20,448,144 34,090,416 14,610,700
Summary of Loans (In SAR Millions)
31.8
14.3
0.3
2020 2021 2022

Arab National Bank ll

Al-lnma Bank l

The total loans, the total repaid amount therefrom and the total paid during year 2022 are illustrated in the table below:

Total Loans Obtained

Total Paid Until

Total Paid during

Banks 2019 2020 2021 2022 31/12/2022 Year 2022
Arab Bank 20,000,000 6,000,000 23,000,000 - 37,838,038 18,628,505
Al - Inma Bank 3,375,000 2,363,835 - - 3,558,191 2,118,305
Total 54,738,835 41,396,229 20,747,810

30



Disclosure of inconsistency with the accounting
standards

There is no deviation in compliance with the standards, since
the financial statements of the Company for the fiscal year
ended 31 December 2022 was prepared in accordance with
the International Accounting Standards adopted in KSA and
the accounting standards issued by the Saudi Organization
for Certified Public Accountants. There are also no
fundamental remarks or reservations by the external auditor
on the annual financial statements of the Company during the
fiscal year ended 31 December 2022.

Legal Payments:

Entity Paid During the Year

Due by End of Year
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Value-Added Tax

The Saudi Lime Industries Co. paid the due amounts in
accordance with the tax returns by SAR 2,231,383.

Sanctions and penalties imposed on the Company
During Year 2022

No penalties or sanctions are imposed on the Company, and
no cases or complaints are filed against the Company by any
third party. Moreover, no cases are filed by the Company
against any third party.

Description

Zakat 2,016,307 1,473,968
Customs duties 108,741 0
Visas 433,000 0
Quarrying fees 1,504,462 1,754,462
Social Insurance 1,784,376 154,654
Contributions

Fees for renewal/

|ssua.nce of residence 254,010 0
permits and work

permits

Fees for issuing

or renewing legal 133,257 0

certificates or licenses

The amounts paid during the year represent zakat
differences from previous years as a result of re-
examination. With respect to the due amounts, it is the
zakat provision for year 2022. The zakat provision was
calculated on the basis of the zakat base or the adjusted
net profit, whichever is greater

The Company shall be subject to customs regulations. The
customs due value shall be paid in advance when clearing
any spare parts, equipment or materials imported from
outside KSA

It is a legal requirement to obtain an entry or exit permit
for employees of the Company when traveling

The financial fee for renting the land and exploiting the
qguarries of raw materials shall be paid every three
months according to the Mining Investment Law in KSA

The Company's employees shall be subject to the Sacial
Insurance Law and contributions shall be paid monthly on
an accumulative basis

According to the residency regulations in KSA, all non-
Saudi employees shall be subject to the payment of fees
and shall be paid such fees when due.

Regular payments made to obtain government services,
certificates or licenses necessary for the exercise of the
Company’s activity and paid when due.
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The most notable efforts in addition to the achievements made during year 2022 are as follows:

Sales

During year 2022, the Sales Department was able to achieve remarkable higher sales figures compared to the figures of year
2021, with an increase of about

SAR 10 million, despite the rise in diesel and other fuel prices, which negatively affected operational costs and the prices of
contracts with terms of 2 to 5 years as well, forcing the Company’s management to adjust prices in harmony with the Company’s
palicy and maintain the continuity of supplies and the market share of Saudi Lime. On the other hand, there were the ongoing global
supply chain issues that raised international shipping costs, and some export customs restrictions that preclude exports with an
exception to the shipping containers of high costs.

However, we have succeeded in maintaining customers’ trust in us by proving our ability to keep pace with changes and emergency
developments adaptation with high flexibility to achieve the goals of the Company and customers as well.

Furthermore, during year 2022, several contracts and agreements were renewed with some of the current major customers, and
many negotiations were entered into so as to conclude contracts with former and new customers with quantities of more than
300,000 tons of different products worth more than SAR 100 million.

Production and Quality

01

Periodic weekly and
monthly follow-ups were
conducted with the top
20 customers

05

Special workmen were
trained on employment
to fill the shortage in

operating specializations.

02

A new type of product
was produced (hydrated
dololime).

06

New sizes were produced
that are more sellable,
and new markets were
entered that we were
not qualified enough
previously to enter such
markets.

03

The productivity of mills
was raised from 140,000
tons to 155,000 tons.

07

In the last quarter of the year,

04

A research and
development department
was established to work
closely on products

that add value to the
customers.

dolomite quarry was reoperated after

a halt of more than 10 years. It is

expected to have a positive impact on

the results of year 2023.



Supply Chains and Projects

01

The new administrative building of
the Company was completed to be a
turning milestone

04

A safety scheme was implemented
and completed for the housing of
Jeddah workers and its approval as
the housing for Jeddah factory as a
callective housing from Modon

07

The construction plans were
campleted for the Palletizer unit and
approval is underway from Modon to
start implementation process

02

A new piston for bricks was added in
Riyadh, 50% of its mechanical works
were implemented and all remaining
works are expected to be completed
in order to start pilot operation at
the end of September 2023

05

A complete restoration of the
housing of workers of Riyadh
factories was 100% completed

08

The addition of an additional storage

silo for Mill No. 2 was completed with

a capacity of 250 tons at site No. 1
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03

A safety scheme was implemented
and approved for the housing of the
Company’s crusher workers

06

The civil works of the Mill No. 7 of
the firefighting unit at site No. 2

was completed; the mechanical and
electrical works are under progress,
knowing that operation will begin on
the first of April 2023
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Maintenance

1. The transition and operation of furnaces (1, 2, 3) from
natural gas to crude oil was successfully and smoothly
completed during the scheduling of the interruption of
natural gas supply to furnaces in site No.1

2. A new production line parallel to the old line was
installed in the area of Mill 3 allowing production to raise
productivity and diversity in product specifications

3. New belts for the normal line were manufactured and
installed from the product of Furnace 6 helping in the
conversion of the normal product to other products that
have more sales than normal.

4. A new crusher line was installed in the Calcium 1 area at
site No.1 raising the carbonate yields for the customers.

5. Modification of bricks on piston (1) was made in order
to allow production of special size bricks (not previously
produced) for use in the construction of the new
administrative building.

6. The transfer and installation of a new piston was started
by the end of the year, which was recently purchased.
The piston was already installed in place and the
installation and organization of new belts, and the rest of
the installations are under progress.

Spark-Lime Pillars

Shared Services and
Compliance

The culture of work at Saudi Lime Industries Co. represents
a clear and motivating basis for its employees by supporting
their progress and developing their skills in a dynamic
environment that enhances creativity. Consequently, this
will result in an increasing value for both employees and the
Company.

The Company, at the end of year 2022, achieved a retention
rate of 85.4% through a comprehensive program of employee
development initiatives and raised levels of job satisfaction
based on the goals of the “Spark Lime” strategy.

Basically, Spark Lime's strategy is the driver of the
Company’s work culture. Such strategy guides all employees
on a single path towards excellence and success. In this
caontext, the Saudi Lime Industries Co. was keen to formulate
this strategy in recognition of the significance of activating
employee participation and achieving job satisfaction.

Spark Lime's strategy depends on five key pillars arose
from the corporate values adopted by Saudi Lime Industries
Co. ensuring the establishment of the Company’'s concept
of work, and activating the participation of employees, in
addition to their empowerment across the Company.

Subject to the values of the Saudi Lime Industries Co., a set of pillars were identified that highlighted the internal working concept

of the Company representing a contribution to its promotion:

Success

Passion

Accountability

Knowledge

Reliability
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Future Vision and Aspirations

Strategic Plan 2022-2025

Using one of the specialized international companies, the
preparation of a strategic plan for the Company 2022-
2025 was completed to achieve the vision of the Company
and optimize the rights of shareholders (offering in the
market) on one hand and the value provided to customers,
on the other hand, by rearranging the Company internally at
administrative, financial and marketing levels.

Management Development

The implementation of the Company's administrative
development package has been completed, including:

- Digitizing the Company’s operations started through a
new ERP system project.

- Achieve KSA’s vision of the Saudization of most
professions in all departments.

Developmental Studies

A series of operational and investment decisions and studies
were completed in order to systematize the Company’s
resources and boost their use, including:

- The establishment of an investment portfolio of the
Company is considered regarding entering into new
investments or growth plans.

- The production of new products study.
- Brick sales development study.

- High rates are preserved and breakthroughs are
achieved in periodic maintenance, activating the role
of preventive maintenance as well as optimizing social
responsibility in the environment protection.

Human Resources

- Preparation of a training plan for the employees at all
administrative levels in order to increase their efficiency
and provide them with all the skills and knowledge
necessary to perform their job duties in the best way
passible.

- A human resources department was established.
Additionally, a special training section was established,
and a national cadre capable of achieving the vision was
appointed.

- Our aim is to increase the Company’s Saudization rates
for all professional specializations in line with the recent
government decisions until the high green range is
reached.

- Our aim is to establish the values of the Company among
employees through the establishment of many events
and sessions in various occasions during the year.

- We strive to develop the Company’s social responsibility
towards society and the environment.
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The General Framework of Governance

in the Saudi Lime Industries Co.

The Company adheres to the highest standards of corporate
governance and apply all provisions contained in the
Corporate Governance Regulation issued by the Capital
Market Authority with certain permitted exceptions, as well
as international governance principles and best practices
where applicable. Saudi Lime Industries Co. developed
a governance framework including the regulations and
palicies, which promote transparency, accountability and
competence.

The organizational structure consists of the Board of
Directors of the Company (the “Board Committees”) and a
team of Executive Officers (the “Executive Management”).
The Board of Directors is fully responsible to establish,
supervise and review the Saudi Lime Industries Co.'s
governance principles (and policies) in order to ensure that
the Company adheres to the relevant regulations, while
promoting the Company’s growth and sustainability.

The Executive Management has the overall responsibility for
the day-to-day management of the Saudi Lime’s operations
and. Noting that shareholders are among the most important
segments of Saudi Lime's governance framework. The
governance framework requires from the Board of Directors
“the attendance of the member of the Board of Directors
at the meetings of the General Assembly”, and thus, the
Board aspires to meet with the shareholders and listen to
their suggestions and remarks about the Company and the
performance thereof.

The Articles of Association of the Company, on the other
hand, ensure the participation of shareholders in the
deliberations and discussions made at the meetings of the
General Assembly. Moreover, to support communication with
shareholders, the Board of Directors adopted a disclosure
palicy and procedures that included procedures to ensure
shareholders’ right to inquire and request information, and
answer their inquiries in a way that does not cause harm or
damage to the interests of the Company.

The Articles of Association of the Saudi Lime Industries
Co. include a set of rules and procedures that are highly
consistent with the guiding regulation of corporate
governance (not listed on the Capital Market) issued by the
Ministry of Commerce and Investment issued on October
5, 2018, which includes the rules and guiding standards
governing the management of the Company ensuring the
compliance with best practices that guarantee the protection
of the shareholders and stakeholders rights.

Internal Audit

The Board Audit Committee held several meetings during the
year, with the aim of objectively and independently confirming
the efficiency and effectiveness of the internal control
systems. Internal audit also participated in some special
assignments, for example, cooperating with the external
audit team to carry out audits of the Company’s financial
statements, adhere to the Company’s palicies, evaluate risks
and develop the frameworks necessary to control such risks.

Audit Committee View

As of 31 December 2022, and subject to what was provided
by the Executive Management, and what was included in the
auditor’s reports issued during the year, we believe that
the Company’s Executive Management provided an effective
system of internal control, and that the scope and size of the
audits, and the discussions of the Audit Committee during the
meetings, provided the Audit Committee with a rational basis
for this point of view.

Transactions with Relevant Parties

The Company has the overall responsibility for the
procurement of warehouse services, transportation and
delivery of spare parts through the Company’s supply chain
management.

The Company established its various departments and
internal audits to ensure the protection of the interests
of all parties related to its business, including customers,
suppliers, employees and shareholders. The Company
focused on managing its risks in a manner that enables
achieving its strategic objectives. The Saudi Lime Industries
Co. protects its business from legal risks by providing legal
advice and services and reviewing contracts, policies and
regulations to adhere to the relevant laws and regulations
issued by the legislative authorities in the places where the
Company conducts its business.



Representations made in accordance with
the Corporate Governance Regulations

Representations of the Board of Directors

In addition to the other representations contained herein,

the Board of Directors represents and warrants that:

No interruption in the Company’s business could affect or
had a remarkable impact on the financial situation during
the last 12 months.

The Company shall not be subject to claims or legal
proceedings which, in part or in whole, may materially
affect the Company’s business or its financial position.

The Company has transactions with relevant parties,
and the Company obtained the approval of the General
Assembly of the Company’s shareholders for all
transactions with relevant parties, and that all business
and contracts with such relevant parties will be voted on
at the General Assembly of the Company’s shareholders.

Accounts’ records were properly prepared, and that
there is no doubt that the Company is able to continue
its activity.

There is no penalty, sanction, precautionary measure,
or precautionary restriction imposed on the Company
by the competent authority or by any other supervisory,
regulatory, or judicial authority.

The Company did not issue or grant any converted debt
instruments, contractual securities, protective rights, or
any similar rights during the fiscal year 2022.

The Company did not issue or grant any transfer
or subscription rights under any converted debt
instruments, contractual securities, guarantees or
similar rights.

There are no refunds, purchases or cancellations by the
Company of any refundable debt instruments.

There is no business, and the Company has not entered
into any contracts, in which a member of the Board of
Directors, senior executives, or any person related to
any of them has a material interest.

There are no arrangements or agreements under which
a member of the Board of Directors or a senior executive
waived any salaries or remunerations.

There are no arrangements or agreements under which
one of the shareholders of the Company waived his rights
in relation with the profits.

The auditors’ report declares that the financial
statements are void of material misstatement, and there
are no reservations thereon.
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The Board of Directors did not make a recommendation to
change the auditor before the expiry of his appointment
period.

Furthermore, the Board of Directors represents and
warrants that as of the date of publication of this document
(31/12/2022):

The members of the Board of Directors shall not
participate in business that competes with the Company
without obtaining the approval of the Ordinary General
Assembly of the shareholders of the Company.

There are no other facts that could affect the application
for registration of securities that are not contained
herein.

That the Company obtained all the basic licenses and
approvals required to carry out and perform its activities.

The Company obtained all the approvals necessary for
listing its shares in the parallel market from the General
Assembly.

The directors are not informed on any other remarkable
risks that could affect the decision of potential investors
to invest in the Company’s shares.

There are no restrictions or impediments on the shares
of the founding shareholders listed in the register of
shareholders.

None of the founding shareholders has ever been
declared bankrupt under any jurisdiction, none of them
has ever been a party to a preventive composition
arrangement, and they have never been subject to
bankruptcy proceedings.

There is no power or authority given to the members of
the Board of Directors to borrow from the Company.

There is no authority to the members of the Board
of Directors or the CEO has the right to vote on
remunerations granted to them.

The Company’s shares have no optional rights.

The Board of Directors’ relationship with the Company is
governed by the Articles of Association and the Byelaws.

Representations of the Company

The Company represents and warrants that:

All provisions contained in the Corporate Governance
Regulation issued by the Capital Market Authority shall
be applied.
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- Operational Procedures

Internal audit and
risk management

The Board of Directors of the Company shall set the basic plans, policies, strategies and objectives of the Company. Moreover, the
Board of Directors shall supervise the strategies’ implementation and review them periodically, and ensure that the necessary
human and financial resources are available to achieve them, including the development of key work plans, performance evaluation
indicators, risk management policies and procedures, in addition to review and guidance in this regard. The Board of Directors
shall also determine the optimal capital structure of the Company, its strategies and financial objectives, approve the estimated
budgets, supervise the main capital expenditures of the Company, in addition to the possession of assets and disposal thereof. The
Board of Directaors shall also establish systems and controls for internal audit and general supervision thereof.

The Board of Directors of the Saudi Lime Industries Co. consists of (7) members, taking into consideration the availahility of the
expertise necessary to manage and control the Company’s business. The Board of Directors was elected on 21/7/2020 for a
period of 3 years ending on 20/7/2023.

Composition of the Board of Directors and Secretary as at 31-12-2022

Nature of

Date of

Representation/

Member Name membership Nationality Title appointment Representative Name
. " . Non- executive- . Chairman of . o
Mr. Abdulaziz Majid Alkassabi . Saudi 21/07/2020 Moushira Saudi Limited Co.
non-independent the Board
Non- executive- Vice Abdulaziz Ahmed Al
Mr. H Moh Al- K iti 21/07/2020
r. Hamad Mohammad Al-Saad non-independent uwart Chairman Ghannam & Brothers Co.
Dr. Adel Khaled Al-Subaih Non-executive- .\ ity hember of 21/07/2000  NationalIndustries
non-independent the Board Company
Mr. Bader Saleh Al-lssa N?n— executive- Kuwaiti Member of 51/07/2020 Amlak Al Issa Real Estate
independent the Board Investment Company
Mr. Abdul Majeed Hamad Al- Non- executive- . Member of . .
Jomaih non-independent Saudi the Board 21/07/2020 Al Jomaih Holding Company
Mr. Abdulaziz Tariq Al Bassam Non-Executive - Saudi Member of 21/07/2020 -
Independent the Board
Non-E tive - Memb f
Mr. Saud Khaled Al-Mughams on-executive Kuwaiti ember o 21/07/2020  Rekaz National Company
Independent the Board
Non- tive- S t f
* Mr. Ahmed Elsayed Ibrahim On” eXECUtVe= o ptian  “SCretany o 31/05/2022 -

*The Board of Directors, on 31/5/2022, decided to appoint Mr. Ahmed Al-Sayed Ibrahim as Secretary to succeed Mr. Assem Ismail for the current remaining period of the Board.

non-independent

the Board
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Saudi Lime Industries Co. Board of Directors

Mr. Abdulaziz Majid Alkassabi

Chairman

I

~
Mr. Hamad Mohammad Al-Saad Dr. Adel Khaled Al-Subaih Mr. Bader Saleh Al-Issa
Vice Chairman Member of the Board of Directors Member of the Board of Directors

Mr. Abdul Majeed Hamad Al-Jomaih Mr. Saud Khaled Al-Mughams Mr. Abdulaziz Tariq Al Bassam

Member of the Board of Directors Member of the Board of Directors Member of the Board of Directors
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Saudi Lime Industries Co. Board of Directors

Abdulaziz Majid Alkassabi

Current Position:

- Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Saudi Lime
Industries Co.

- Vice Chairman of Hail Cement Company

- Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Petromin
Company

- Owner and CEO of Moushira Saudi Arabia

Previous Position: NA

Qualifications:

- MBA from the University of Claremont, California

- Bachelor of Engineering Management from Missouri
University of Science and Technology, USA

Experience:

- Development of executive management strategies and
analysis of financial statements

- Member of Petromin Audit Committee.

- Member of the Board of Directors of Ayyan Investment
Group Company

Hamad Mohammed Al Saad

Current Position:
- Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Saudi
Lime Industries Co.

- Vice Chairman and CEO of National Industries Company
in Kuwait.

- Board of Directors member of Ammar Finance and
Leasing Company in Kuwait

Previous Position:

- CEO of Ammar Finance and Leasing Company

- Director of Investment/ Evaluation Department at
Kuwait Small Enterprises Development Company

Qualifications:

- Bachelor of Industrial and Systems Engineering from
the University of Southern California.

Experience:
- Chairman of the Board of Directors of Ammar Finance
and Leasing Company

- Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Real
Estate Company

- Chairman of the Board of Directors of Kaifan Real Estate
Company

- Member of the Union of Investment Companies in Kuwait



Adel Khalid Al-Subaih

Current Position:
- Member of the Board of Directors of the Saudi Lime
Industries Co.

- Member of the Board of Directors of the National
Industries Company in Kuwait

- Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Saudi
Insulating Brick Company

Previous Position:

- Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors
of the National Industries Company in Kuwait

Qualifications:
- PhDin Mechanical Engineering University of North
Caralina

- Higher Diploma in Mechanical Engineering, Worcester
Polytechnic Institute

- Bachelor of Mechanical Engineering, Worcester
Polytechnic Institute

Experience:

- He held several ministerial positions in Kuwait until
2002, such as the Ministry of Health /Ministry of
Electricity and Water/ Ministry of Oil.

- He held many academic positions at Kuwait University
and has many researches in addition to two patents.
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Bader Saleh Al-Issa

Current Position:

- Member of the Board of Directors of the Saudi Lime
Industries Co.

- Managing Partner, Hamad Abdullah Al Issa & Sons Co.

- Authorized Partner of Amlak Al Issa Real Estate
Investment Company.

Previous Position:

- Director of Operations at Al-Shall Consultant Company
in Kuwait

Qualifications:

- Bachelor of Applied Engineering from California State
University/ Pomona

Experience:
- He holds several board memberships for industrial and
investment companies in Kuwait and KSA

- Member of the Nomination Committee of the Saudi Lime
Industries Co.
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Abdul Majeed Hamad Al-Jomaih

Current Position:
- Member of the Board of Directors of the Saudi Lime
Industries Co.

- Member of the Board of Directors of Jad Medical
Company

- CEO of Global Recycling Corporation (GRC)

- Member of the Board of Directors of Wishes land Real
Estate Development

Previous Position:

- Arbitration and Judicial Appeal at PAN-GLOBE,
Advocates and Legal Consultants - Dubai- UAE

Qualifications:

Master of Business Administration/ Finance from IE
University

Bachelor of Commercial Law from the University of Sharjah

Experience:
- Member of the Board of Directors of Al-Jomaih Tire
Company

- Member of the Advisory Board of Xpence Financial
Solutions and Consulting

- Member of the Board of Directors of the Saudi Insulating
Brick Company.

Abdulaziz Tariq Al Bassam

Current Position:

- Member of the Board of Directors of the Saudi Lime
Industries Co.

- Vice Chairman and CEO of General Equipment Company

- Member of the Board of Directors of Hail Cement Company

- Member of the Board of Directors of Industrial Gases
Company

Previous Position:

- General Manager of Nestaa Development Company
Limited

- Deputy General Manager of Al Bassam International
Company

Qualifications:

- Master of Business Administration
- Bachelor of Economics

- Project Management Diploma

Experience:

- Chairman of the Nomination Committee and member of
the Audit Committee of the Saudi Lime Industries Co.

- Chairman of the Audit Committee Hail Cement Company.



Saud Khaled Al - Mughams

Current Position:

- Member of the Board of Directors of the Saudi Lime
Industries Co.

- Deputy General Manager of Hempel Paints Company -
Kuwait

Previous Position:

- Head of Banking Department - Kuwait Fund for
Development

Qualifications:

- Bachelor of Business Administration - Gulf University of
Science and Technology in Kuwait

Experience:

- Member of the Executive Committee of the Saudi Lime
Industries Co.
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Board of Directors Meetings

The Board of Directors held their meetings six times remotely during the fiscal year ended on 31-12-2022.

Record of attendance at Board meetings

[
-_2' Board of Directors Meetings during 2022 4
5 £
g g
£ 5 Rewards,
3
= %‘, benefits and
S First Second Third Fourth Fifth Sixth E wages paid to
; e the members for
;v £ the year ended
Member Name Title 8-Feb 23-Mar 31-May 8-Jun 27-Sep 28-Dec < on 31/12/2022
Non- Chairman
Mr. Abdulaziz Majid
A“(rassa;az'z a executive-non-  of the Attended  Attended  Attended  Attended  Attended  Attended  100% NA
independent Board
Non- X
I ETIEE executive- non- V.u:e Attended Apologized Attended Attended Attended Attended 83% NA
Mohammad Al-Saad X Chairman
independent
Dr. Adel Khaled Al- Non- Member of
L executive- non- Attended Attended Attended Attended Attended Attended 100% NA
Subaih . the Board
independent
Mr. Bader Saleh Mo Member of
' executive-- Attended Attended Apologized Attended Apologized Attended 67% NA
Al-Issa . the Board
independent
Mr. Abdul Majeed Non- Member of
) ! . executive- non- Attended Attended Attended Attended Attended Attended 100% NA
Hamad Al-Jomaih . the Board
independent
Mr. Abdulaziz Tarig Al Non-E tive- M f
r. Abdulaziz Tarig on-Executive SmPerof )iionded  Attended  Attended  Attended  Attended  Attended  100% NA
Bassam Independent the Board
Mr. Saud Khaled Al- Non-E tive - Memb f
. saud Khate on-Executive SMOET O Attended  Attended  Attended  Attended  Attended  Attended  100% NA
Mughams Independent the Board



Meetings of the General Assemblies held during 2022

Four general assemblies were held during 2022, including two extraordinary assemblies

Register of Attendance at General Assembly Meetings
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Meetings of the General Assembly during 2022

Normal Unusual Unusual Normal

Member Name Title 26-Jan 25-Apr 29-Jun 31-Oct

Mr. Abdulaziz Majid Alkassabi Chairman of the Board Attended Attended Attended Attended
Mr. Hamad Mohammad Al-Saad Vice Chairman Apologized Apologized Apologized Attended
Dr. Adel Khaled Al-Subaih Member of the Board Apologized Attended Attended Attended
Mr. Bader Saleh Al-Issa Member of the Board Apologized Attended Attended Attended
Mr. Abdul Majeed Hamad Al-Jomaih Member of the Board Apologized Apologized Apologized Attended
Mr. Abdulaziz Tarig Al Bassam Member of the Board Attended Attended Attended Attended
Mr. Saud Khaled Al-Mughams Member of the Board Attended Attended Attended Attended

Board Committees

Audit Committee

The approval of the Ordinary General Assembly of the Company’s shareholders was issued on 27/07/1438 H corresponding to
24/04/2017 AD on the formation of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee has the overall responsibility for monitoring and
following-up the Company’s business, ensuring the integrity of financial reports and statements, and its internal control systems.
The current committee was reconstituted after the approval of the Extraordinary General Assembly on 21/7/2020 AD.

The following table shows the members of the Audit Committee, their membership, and the record of attendance at the Committee’s

meetings:

Statement of Audit Committee

Meetings during 2022

First Second
Member Name Nature of membership Title 17-Feb 24-Aug
Mr. Ali Ayed Al-Qahtani g:::’dezsen?:;crfomrsoutSide e Chairman of the Committee  Attended Attended
Mr. Abdulaziz Tarig Al Bassam Independent Board Member Committee Member Attended Attended
Mr. Ehsan Amanullah Makhdoum Independent from outside the Committee Member Attended Attended

Board of Directors

*The Extraordinary General Assembly, on 25/4/2022, approved the appointment of Mr. Ehsan Makhdoum as a member of the Audit Committee for the remainder of the current
session, replacing Mr. Ghassan Sufi, whose resignation was approved in the General Assembly dated 26/1/2022.
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was constituted in accordance with the decision of the Board of Directors at the 35th meeting held on
11-11-2021.

The Executive Committee exercises all the powers and authorities entrusted thereto by the Board of Directors. Additionally,
it acts as the Board of Directors within the powers granted thereto within the periods between the meetings of the Board of
Directors. The Executive Committee also participates and supervises the development of short-term strategic plans as well as
supervises the preparation of the financial statements and annual budgets of the Company. The Executive Committee reviews and
examines the Company’s social responsibility policy and social work initiatives, and submits the Company’s operational policies
and procedures to the approval of the Board of Directors.

The following table illustrates the members of the Executive Committee, their membership and the record of attendance at the
meetings of the Committee as at 31-12-2022G.

Statement of the
meetings of the Executive
Committee during 2022

First
Member Name Nature of membership Title 25-Dec
Mr. Abdulaziz Majid Alkassabi Non-Independent Chairman Chairman of the Committee Attended
Mr. Abdul Majeed Hamad Al-Jomaih Non-independent Board Member Member Attended
Mr. Saud Khaled Al-Mughams Independent Board Member Member Attended

Remuneration and Nomination Committee

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee was constituted in accordance with the decision of the Board of Directors at the
meeting No. 45 dated 08-02-2022.

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee consists of at least three members, and the Remuneration and Nomination
Committee carries out the tasks assigned thereto subject to the governance regulation, which illustrates the approved powers
and also includes the scope of its business. The Remuneration and Nomination Committee carries out many tasks, for example,
setting fair policies for the remuneration of the Board of Directors and Executive Management to attract high-performing active
members, managing the process of evaluating the performance of the members of the Board and the emerging committees,
supervising the process of candidacy for membership of the Board and its committees, in addition to ensuring its performance
efficiency.

The Committee consists of:

1. Mr. Abdulaziz Tarig Al-Bassam- Chairman
2. Mr. Abdulaziz Majid Alkassabi - Member
3. Mr. Bader Saleh Al-Issa- Member

* The Committee did not hold any meeting during year 2022.



Executive Management

Ahmed Salim Elewa

Position: CEQ

Academic Qualifications:

- 2001: Bachelor of Commerce and Business
Administration, Helwan University, Egypt.

- 2004: Postgraduate Diploma in Accounting and Auditing,

Helwan University.

- Fellow of the Egyptian Society of Accountants and
Auditors.

- Fellow of the Egyptian Tax Association.

Work Experience:

- 2002 -2019:

- Worked in audit and consulting at Ernst & Young (EY)
and (KPMG) offices in the Middle East and Africa.

- Consultant and acting CEQ of major international
companies operating in KSA and the Middle East
through his work in the consulting department of
(EY) offices.

- Head of the Financial Sector and Assistant CEO of
Jeddah Aircraft Fueling Station responsible for the
maintenance and operation of the fuel field at King
Abdulaziz Airport, Jeddah.

Membership in other Boards of Directors:

- 2021 - Present: Member of the Board of Directors of
Hail Cement Company, a public joint stock company
specialized in the cement industry.
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Capital and Ownership Reporting

Capital

A statement illustrates the capital information of the Company and the number of its shares as at December 31, 202¢2:

Capital
Description Value
Authorized Capital/ SAR 200,000,000
Paid-up Capital/ SAR 200,000,000
Number of Shares Issued 20,000,000
Nominal value per share/ SAR 10
Value Paid Per Share/ SAR 10

- All Saudi Lime Industries Co. shares issued are common shares, and the Company does not have preferred shares.
- The Company does not have any treasury shares.

- There are no restrictions on investing in the shares of the Saudi Lime Industries Co. according to the rules governing
investment process.

- Inyear 2023, the Company will offer a number of 2 million shares for public subscription to increase its capital to SAR 220
million distributed over 22 million shares after the obtaining the approval of the Capital Market Authority to list in the parallel
market.

- None of the executives of the Saudi Lime Industries Co. own any of its shares.

Ownership of the Company’s shares by the members of the Audit Committee

Number of Shares Owned

Change during the

On 1/1/2022 On 31/12/2022 year
Member Name Nature of membership Number % Number % Number %
Mr. Ali Ayed Al-Qahtani Chairman of the Committee - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00%
Mr. lhsan Amanullah Makhdoom Committee Member = 0.00% = 0.00% = 0.00%

Mr. Abdulaziz Tarig Al Bassam Committee Member - 0.00% 13,438 0.07% 13,438 100.00%



The members of the Board of Directors possession of the Company shares

Number of Shares Owned
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Change during

Representation/ On 1/1/2022 On 31/12/2022 the year
Representative
Member Name Title Name Number % Number % Number %
M. Abdulaziz Majid Chairman MOLL::E;Z Sci“d' 1,182,631 591% 1,000,000 500% (182,631) -15.44%
Alkassabi of the
Board Directly - 0.00% 40,000 0.20% 40,000 100.00%
Abdulaziz Ahmed
- 0, - 0 - [o)
M Hamad Mohammad Al- e Al Ghannam & 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
. Brothers Co.
Saad Chairman
Directly 5 0.00% = 0.00% 5 0.00%
Member Natlo[r:wal Industries . 0.00% ) 0.00% ) 0.00%
Dr. Adel Khaled Al-Subaih of the ompany
Board Directly - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00%
Member A?'fktAlcEssa Real - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00%
Mr. Bader Saleh Al-Issa of the state Lompany
Board Directly = 0.00% - 0.00% = 0.00%
. Member ~ AmJomain Holding . 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00%
Mr. Abdul Majeed Hamad of the Company
AlJomaih
Board Directly - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00%
Member - - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00%
Mr. Abdulaziz Tarig Al Bassam of the
Board Directly 5 0.00% 13,438  0.07% 13,438  100.00%
Member Focgsed Al Ahlia . 0.00% § 0.00% - 0.00%
Mr. Saud Khaled Al-Mughams ~ of the ompany
Board Directly - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00%

* Mr. Abdulaziz Alkassabi possesses 1 million shares indirectly as a result of his ownership of 50% of Moushira Saudi Limited Co., which owns 2 million shares of the Saudi Lime

Industries Co.
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Profits and Remunerations Policy

Profits Distribution Policy

As stipulated in the Company’s Articles of Association, the
Company’s annual net profits are distributed as follows:

1.

(10%) of the net profits shall be set aside to form the
statutory reserve of the Company. The Ordinary General
Assembly may decide to suspend this set aside net profit
when the said reserve reaches (30%) of the paid-up
capital.

Upon the proposal of the Board of Directors, the Ordinary
General Assembly may avoid another percentage of the

net profits to constitute an agreement reserve allocated
for a specific purpose or goals

3. The Ordinary General Assembly may decide to constitute
other reserves to the extent that it is in the interest of
the Company or ensures the distribution of fixed profits
as much as possible to the shareholders. The said
assembly may also deduct from the net profit sums for
the establishment of social institutions for the Company’s
employees or for the assistance of such institutions as
may exist.

4. The remaining amount shall then be distributed to the
shareholders representing at least 5% of the paid-up
capital of the Company.

Remuneration of the Board"

5. Pursuant to the provisions of Article (22) of Articles of
Association, and Article (76) of the Companies Law, and
all the foregoing, 10% of the balance shall be allocated
to the remuneration of the Board of Directors, provided
that the entitlement of this remuneration shall be
proportional to the number of sessions attended by the
member.

The Company may distribute interim profits to the Company
shareholders on a semi-annual or quarterly basis subject
to the controls and requirements issued by the relevant
authorities. The interim dividends for the year 2022 business
were not distributed.

Taking into consideration that no partial distribution of year

2022 profits distributed during the year.

Remunerations and Allowances

The annual remuneration of the members of the Board of
Directors shall be disbursed after obtaining the approval
and acceptance of the Company’s General Assembly.
The remunerations paid by the Company and due to the
members of the Board of Directors and the members of
the Committees during 2022 are as follows:

2022 (SAR) will be disbursed after the approval of
Member Name the Shareholders’ General Assembly * 2021 (SAR) disbursed in 2022

Abdulaziz Majid Alkassabi
Hamad Mohammed Al Saad
Dr. Adel Khaled Al-Subaih
Bader Saleh Al-Issa

Saud Khaled Al - Mughams
Abdulaziz Tarig Al Bassam

Abdul Majeed Hamad Al-Jomaih

200,000 200,000
200,000 200,000
200,000 200,000
200,000 200,000
200,000 200,000
200,000 200,000
200,000 200,000

*The said amounts are paid for the membership of the Board of Directors during year 2021, and they were paid after the approval of the Ordinary General Assembly in year
2022. The annual remuneration for the membership of the Board of Directors for year 2022 are allocated amounts that will be paid after the approval of the Ordinary General
Assembly, which is agreed to be held during year 2023. Furthermore, such amounts will be paid according to the attendance ratio of each member in the meetings of the Board

of Directors.
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2022 2021
Name Nature of membership Will be disbursed after approval Disbursed in 2022
Mr. Ali Al-Qahtani Chairman of the Committee SAR 25,000 SAR 25,000
Mr. Abdulaziz Tarig Al Bassam Member and Secretary of the Committee SAR 25,000 SAR 25,000
Mr. Ehsan Makhdoum Committee Member SAR 25,000 SAR 25,000

1. The members of the Audit Committee were paid an exceptional bonus of SAR 45,000, an amount of SAR 15,000 to each

member in return for additional efforts of the Audit Committee in the IPO project.

2. No remunerations or allowances were paid to the members of the Audit Committee for its usual work during year 2022. It is

proposed to pay SAR 25,000 per member.

Executive Committee Remuneration

2022 2021
Name Nature of membership Will be disbursed after approval Disbursed in 2022
Mr. Abdulaziz Alkassabi Chairman of the Committee SAR 3,000 SAR 18,000
Mr. Abdul Majeed Al-Jomaih Committee Member SAR 3,000 SAR 18,000
Mr. Saud Al-Mughames Committee Member SAR 3,000 SAR 18,000

- Noremunerations were paid to the members of the Executive Committee during year 2022.

- Remuneration of the Executive Committee members is computed based on SAR3,000 per member for each Executive

Committee meeting

- No in-kind benefits, allowances or shares were paid to the members of the Board or the members of the Board committees

during year 2022.

Remuneration of Executive Management Employees

An annual bonus of SAR 1.8 million was allocated to the Company’s employees.

Remuneration of Senior Executive Management Employees during 2022

Employee Defined Benefit Obligation (End of Service Benefit) Short-term benefits (salaries and allowances) Total

3,716,117 2,516,560

1,199,557
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Shareholder Relations

Subject to our Company great concern and interest in the rights of shareholders and in recognition of the Board of Directors’
responsibilities towards all shareholders, and believing in the significance of institutional governance with the purpose of
protecting shareholders’ rights and achieving continuous communication based on a common understanding of the Company’s
objectives, strategy and interests and supporting internal control by activating the role of the Board of Directors and its
committees and complying with the principle of disclosure and transparency, the Company continued during year 2022 to comply
with all shareholders’ rights stipulated in the Company’s Articles of Association, governance regulations and other relevant
regulations.

The Company is always earnest and keen to provide all information of interest to the shareholders of the Company transparently
and impartially to enable them to exercise their rights to the fullest through the general assemblies and to keep them updated
with the latest business developments.

The shareholders’ register applications during year 2022

A statement shows the dates of the shareholders’ register applications during year 2022 and the reasons thereof.

File Type Application Date File Date Reason for application
Shareholders' equity 05/01/2022 08/11/2021 General Assembly
Shareholders' equity 21/02/2022 21/02/2022 Corporate Actions
Shareholders' equity 04/04/2022 03/04/2022 General Assembly
Shareholders' equity 08/06/2022 03/04/2022 General Assembly
Shareholders' equity 30/09/2022 30/09/2022 Corporate Actions
Shareholders' equity 08/10/2022 30/09/2022 General Assembly

We approved to conduct meetings remotely where the shareholder no longer incurs the trouble of attending at the Company’s
head offices in order to facilitate the shareholders and enable them to exercise their rights and easily participate and vote in the
General Meetings.

Moreover, the Company expects further facilitation by opening investment portfolios accounts for all shareholders so that they
can trade their shares easily and conveniently, in case that the Company’s shares are listed in the parallel market “Nomu”.

For more information, please contact:

Investor Relations Manager Saudi Lime Industries Co.

Mr. Ahmed Elsayed Ibrahim Riyadh 11471 - P.O Box 3130 - KSA
Tel: +966 (11) 2652929 - 102 Tel: +966 (11) 2652929

Mobile: +866 539010104 Fax: +966 (11) 2651175

Email: a.adham(@saudilime.com Email: infodsaudilime.com
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BAKER TILLY MKM & CO,
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

P.0.Box 200467 , Riyadh 11372
Kingdem of Saudi Arabia
T:+966 11 835 1600

F.+366 11 835 1601

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders
Saudi Lime Industries Company
(Closed Joint Stock Company)
Riyadh, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Opinion:

We have audited the financial statements of Saudi Lime Industries Company (the “Company™). which
comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2022, the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the vear
then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at December 3 1, 2022, its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards that are endorsed
in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements issued by the Saudi
Organization for Chartered and Professional Accountants (*SOCPA™).

Basis for Opinion:

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (“ISAs™). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
“Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants and endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (“IESBA Code™), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Key Aundit Matters:

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements for the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. The following is a description of the key audit matter and how it was
addressed during our audit.
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Key audit matter

How the key audit matter was addressed in our audit

Revenue recognition

The Company recognized revenues of SR 142.4
million for the year ended December 31. 2022
(2021: 8R 131.6 million).

Considering the importance of the amount of
revenues and the associated risk of misstatement
resulting from overstatement of recognizing the
revenues, we have considered the revenue
recognition process as a key audit matter.

We have performed the following procedures amang other
matters, based on our professional judgment:

e Reviewing the revenue recognition policy and its
appropriateness with the requirements of IFRS. 15 - “Revenue
from Contracts with Customers™.

¢ Understanding the revenue recognition and trade receivables
as well as testing the design and implementation of internal
control procedures related to revenue recognition and their
operational effectiveness.

e Implementing analytical audit procedures for revenues by
comparing sales quantities and prices for the current year with
the prior year and determining whether there are any
significant trends or flucations that need additional
examination.

o Reviewing the supporting documents for revenues transactions
on a sample basis to validate the revenue recognition,

e Cut-off procedures to verify recording revenues in its correct
periods.

Email: saudi@bakertiiyjfc.oom | Welsite: www.bakertillyrmkm.com

Baker Tilly t4KM & Co. Certified Public Accountants trading as Baker Tilly is an independert member of the global network of Baker Tilly International
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
To the Shareholders

Saudi Lime Industries Company

Other Information:

Other information consists of the information included in the Com pany’s 2022 annual report, other than
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Management is responsible for the other
information in its annual report which are expected to be available to us after the date of this report.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the ather information and we do not exXpress any
form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available to us and, in doing so. we consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. [f we conclude that there is a material misstatement in this
other information, we are required to report that fact to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governanee for the Financial
Statements:

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia and other standards and pronouncements issued by SOCPA and Regulations for Companies and the
Company’s Bylaws and such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as & going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concerned, and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance, i e., the Board of Directors, are responsible for overseeing the Company s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements:

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate. they could reasenably be expected to influgnce
the economic decisions of users taken based on these financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
To the Shareholders
Saudi Lime Industries Company

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements: (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the Kingdom

of Saudi Arabia, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the

audit. We also:

e [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than the one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
callusion, forgery, intentional omission, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of account ng estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

s [Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance. we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters, We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of daing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Majid Muneer Alnemer

License No. 381 \ TR 1010428101:8-0

ILLY
Riyadh on Shawwal 6, 1444H BAKEE
Corresponding to April 26, 2023G

BAKER TILLY
Certified Public A

& CO.

OURIARLS
«
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SAUDI LIME INDUSTRIES COMPANY
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2022

(Expressed in Saudi Riyals)

December 31,
December 31, 2021
Note 2022 (Restated note 32)
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property. plant and eguipment 7 195,349,052 187.384.896
Right of use assets 3 2,530,928 2,828,485
Investment in an associate — non-current portion 9 - 23,508,965
Total Non-Current Assets 197,879,980 213,722,346
Current assets
Investment in an associate - current portion 9 23,677,774 -
Inventories 10 27,363,190 28,930,799
Trade receivables 11 32,249,163 34.616.904
Prepaid expenses and other debit balances 13 8,914,282 5,982,817
Cash and cash equivalents 14 24,948,699 25,114,884
Total Current Assets 117,153,108 94,645,404
Total Assets 315.033.088 308.367.750
EQUITY AND LIARBILITIES
Equity
Share capital 1 200,000,000 200,000,000
Statutory reserve 15 27,628,988 26,046.381
Other reserve 16 (4,742,553) (5.024.880)
Retained earnings 14,378,208 10,134,748
Total Equity 237,264,643 231.156,249
Non-current liabilities
Employee defined benefits obligations 18 7,408,364 7.929.520
Lease liabilities — non-current portion b 1,952,050 2,117,335
Long term loans — non-current portion 19 2,300,000 13,950,003
Total Non-Current Liabilities 11,660,414 23,996 858
Current liabilities
Lease liabilities — current portion ] 420,308 519,110
Long term loans — current portion 19 12,310,700 20,140,413
Due to a related party 12 18,756,360 1,294
Trade payables 15,220,137 12,480,299
Accrued expenses and other credit balances 20 16,519,577 17,258,587
Dividends due to shareholders 17 1,377,531 1,223,280
Zakat provision 21 1,503,418 1,591,660
Total Current Liabilities 66,108,031 53,214,643
Total liabilities 77,768,445 77,211,501
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 315,033,088 308,367,750
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Chairman of Board of Directors

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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SAUDI LIME INDUSTRIES COMPANY
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022
(Expressed In Saudi Riyals)

Note 2022 2021
Revenues 22 142,381,406 131,593,842
Cost of revenues 23 (79,060,264) (72.878,312)
Gross profit 63,321,142 58,715,530
Selling and distribution expenses 24 (30,413,809) (29.702.604)
General and administrative expenses 25 (17,074.445) (19,223.809)
Expected credit loss 11 (131,180) -
Profit from main operations 15,701,708 9,789,117
Share in results of an associate 9 (1,331,191) (1,239,490)
Reversal of impairment losses on investment in an
associate 9 1,500,000 -
Finance cost 26 (588,549) (607,145)
Other income 27 2,018,067 4915015
Profit before Zakat 17,300,035 12,857,497
Zakat 21 (1,473,968) (1,596.666)
Net profit for the year 15,826,067 11,260,831
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
OCI that will net be reclassified to profii or loss in
subsequent years:
Re-measurements of employees defined benefits
obligation 18 282,327 (539.981)
Other comprehensive income (Other
comprehensive loss) 282,327 (539.981)
Total comprehensive income for the year 16,108,394 10,720,850
Basic and diluted EPS from: 28
Profit from main operations 0.7 0,49
Net profit for the year 0.79 0.56

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer
5.7( Jﬁ“

Chairman of Board of Directors

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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SAUDI LIME INDUSTRIES COMPANY
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022
(Expressed In Saudi Riyals)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before Zakat

Adjustments for non-cash transactions:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of rights of use assets

Share in results of an associate

Provision of slow moving inventories

Expected credit losses

Reversal of impairment losses on investment in an associate
Employees defined benefits obligation

Gains from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Finanee cost

Changes in the operating assets and liabilities:
Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepaid expenses and other debit balances
Due to a related party

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other credit balances
Cash generated from operating activities
Zakat paid

Employee defined benefits obligation paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions of property, plant and equipment

Proceed from the disposal of property, plant and equipment
Proceed from an associate

Net cash used in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividends

Long term loans

Lease liabilities paid

Net cash (used in) generated from financing activities

Net changes in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents on January 1

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ON DECEMBER 31

NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

Transfer from spare parts inventories to property, plant and equipment

Chief Financial Officer

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statement

o A

Chief Executive Officer

i _‘-E

2021
2022 (Restated note 32)
17,300,035 12,857,497
12,838,107 11.981,286
439,714 548,757
1,331,191 1,239,490
181,123 -
131,180 -
(1,500,000) -
1,162,020 1,126,378
(39,999) (3,646,117)
372,073 277,155
1,386,486 110,589
2,236,561 (10,142,174)
(2,931,465) 269,085
(744,934) (244,559)
2,739,838 (1,159,505)
(739,010) (5.017.917)
34,162,920 8,199,965
(1,562,210) (1,188,156)
(1,659,461) (3,505.857)
30,941,249 3.505.952
(20,802,264) (13,740,383)
40,000 4,058,081
19,500,000 -
(1,262,264) (9.682.302)
(9,845,749) (135.716)
(19,479,716) 13,642,272
(519,705) (519.069)
(29,845,170) 12,987,487
(166,185) 6.811,137
25,114,884 18,303,747
24,948,699 25,114,884
. 2,091,682
Chairman of Board of Directors
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SAUDI LIME INDUSTRIES COMPANY
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

ORGANIZATION AND ACTIVITY

Saudi Lime Industries Company - Saudi Joint Stock Company ("the Company") was established under
Commercial Registration No. 1010011738 dated in Rabi’ al-Thani 10. 1397 H, the Company also operates
under industrial license No. 11 dated Rabi’ al-Thani 5. 1441 H. The Company’s activities are represented in
the manufacturing of quick and hydrated lime, quicklime powder, the manufacturing of lime sand bricks of
various sizes, and the manufacturing of calcium carbonate.

The Company’s headquarter is located in Al-Kharj Road - Second Industrial City, PO Box 355208, Riyadh
11383, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.

Shareholders subscribed to all the shares of the Company amounting to 20.000.000 ordinary shares, with a
total value of SR 200,000,000, the value of each share being SR (10). On June 29, 2022, the Extraordinary
General Assembly of Shareholders approved the conversion of the Company into a public joint stock
Company by increasing its capital by offering 2,000,000 new ordinary shares for public subscription in the
parallel market (“Nomu").

On December 26, 2022, corresponding to Jumada al-Akhirah 2, 1444 H, the Board of the Capital Market
Authority issued a decision approving the Company’s request to register its shares and offer 2,000,000 shares
representing (9.09%) of its shares in the parallel market.

The accompanying financial statements include the results, assets, liabilitics, and activities of the company
and its following branches.

Commercial Branch registration date
Branch name City Registration No
Saudi Factory for Lime Sand Jeddah 4030038260 Jumada al-Akhirah 1, 1403
Bricks and Building Materials H
Saudi Lime Industries Company Riyadh 1010831123 Rabi® al-Awwal 6 1444 H
Saudi Lime Industries Company Riyadh 1010839140 Rabi™ al-Thani 12, 1444 H

. BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and pronouncements as endorsed by Saudi Organization for Chartered and
Professional Accountants (“SOCPA™).

Measurement basis

These financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis, except for defined benefits plans which are
measured at the present value of future obligations using the projected credit unit method. In addition, these
financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting and the going concern basis.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Saudi Riyal (“SR™), which represents the Company’s functional
currency, and all amounts are rounded to the nearest Saudi Rival, unless otherwise indicated.
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES, AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the financial statements of the Company in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that may affect the recorded
of revenues, expenses, assets, and liabilities disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates may result in a material adjustment in the future to the book values of the assets
or liabilities that will be affected. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Changes in accounting estimates are recognized during the period in which the estimates are revised if
the changed estimates aftect the current and future periods. The Company’s significant judgments, estimates,
and assumptions relating to future reasons are set out below.
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SAUDI LIME INDUSTRIES COMPANY
(Closed Joint Stock Company}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES, AND ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED)

Uncertain assumptions and estimates

Uneertain assumptions and estimates of significant risks that may cause significant changes in the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities during the year are included in the following notes:

e Note |1 — Expected credit loss on trade receivables.

e Note 18 - Measurement of employees' defined benefits obligation in addition to gains or losses from
changes in actuarial assumptions.

#Note 10 Inventories — Impairment of obsolete and slow-moving inventories.

Estimates and assumptions,

Impairment of inventories and provision for slow moving Inventories

Atthe reporting date, the Company’s management determines whether there is any impairment in inventaries
or slow-moving inventories. The determination of impairment requires significant decisions to be made
involving valuation factors that include the nature of the industry and market conditions.

Expected credit loss of trade receivables.

Based on the future vision, the Company evaluates the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments as part of its financial assets carried at amortized cost and fair value through comprehensive
income.

Regarding receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach, which requires recording the expected
losses based on age from the date of initial recognition of receivables. To measure expected credit losses.
receivables have been grouped based on the common credit risk characteristics and the number of aging days.
The expected loss rates have been inferred from the Company’s historical information and adjusted to reflect
the expected future outcome which also includes future information on macroeconomic factors such as
inflation and GDP growth rate.

Other financial assets such as employee receivables and bank balances have low credit risk, so the effect of
applying ECL is not significant.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Company determines the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment to calculate
depreciation. This estimate is determined by calculating the expected use of the asset or the physical tear and
wear factors from use. The management revises the residual value and useful lives annually and the future
depreciation expense is adjusted when management considers that the useful lives differ from previous
estimates.

Impairment of property plant and equipment

The Company’s management assesses the impairment of property and equipment in certain cvents or changes

in circumstances indicating that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Factors that are significant and

which may lead to a review the impairment within other factors include:

e Significant changes in technology and regulatory environment.

® A manual of internal reports indicates that the economic performance of the asset is expected to be bad or
will be bad.

Uncertain Zakat positions

The Company’s current zakat payable relates to management's assessment of the zakat amount due for the
year, It is possible that the final result will differ when the final assessment is issued by the Zakat, Tax and
Customs Authority (“ZATCA”) in future periods. The status of zakat assessments has been disclosed in note
@n.

Judgments
The management makes the following judgments that have a material impact on the amounts included in the
Company’s financial statements, when applying the Company’s accounting policies.
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SAUDI LIME INDUSTRIES COMPANY
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES, AND ASSUMPTIONS(CONTINUED)
Property, plant and equipment components

The Company’s property, plant and equipiment plant have been determined into important components and
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their useful lives. Judgment is required when verifying the
important compenents of the major assets. and while determining the importance of the component, the
management considers the quantitative importance of this component as well as qualitative factors such as a
difference in the useful life compared to the related asset,

Determine control, joint control, and significant influence.

With regard to the investee company, the Company’s management concluded that it exercises significant
influence on it in accordance with the requirements of the International Financial Reporting Standards
approved in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Significant influence is defined as the power to participate in
decisions about the financial and operating policies of the investee and is not 'control' or 'joint control'. The
international standards adopted in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia provide varicus indicators of significant
influence, including representation on the Board of Directors and participation in decision-making, and the
company’s representatives are entitled to attend the gencral meetings of the investee company, and to
participate in the formulation of operational and financial policies and decision-making. The management
believes that the Company exerciscs significant influence over this investee (*associate™).

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSS

4.1 New and amended IFRS applied with no material effect on the financial statements,

In the current year, the Company has applied a number of amendments to IFRSs issued by the Intemational
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) that are mandatorily effective for an accounting period that begins on
or after 1 January 2022, Their adoption has not had any material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts
reported in these financial statements.

- Amendments [FRS 3 Business Combination updating a reference to the Conceptual Framework.

- Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment prohibiting a Company from deducting from the
cost of property. plant and equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the Company
is preparing the asset for its intended use.

- Amendments to IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets regarding the costs to
include when assessing whether a contract is onerous.

- Annual Improvements to I[FRS 2018 — 2020 Cycle amending IFRS 1, IFRS 9. IFRS 16 and IAS 41.

10 -
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SAUDI LIME INDUSTRIES COMPANY
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

4.APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSS (CONTINUED)
4.2 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective and not early adopted.

The Company has not yet carly applied the following new standards, amendments and interpretations that
have been issued but are not yet effective:

New gnd revised IFRSs Effective for
amanal periods
beginning on
or after
Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and 1AS 28 Effective date
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures relating to the treatment of the deferred
sale or contribution of assets from an investor to its associate or joint venture. indefinitely

Amendments to [AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements regarding the
classification of liabilities.

| January 2024

5

Amendments to [FRS 16 Leases regarding the treatment for sale and

leaseback transactions. | January 2024

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts establishes the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts and
supersedes [FRS 4 Insurance Contracts.

| January 2023

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice
Statement 2).

1 January 2023

Amendments to IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors—Definition of Accounting Estimates.

| January 2023

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes—Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction,

1 January 2023

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies used by the Company in preparing these
financial statements:

Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement for assets and
liabilities is based on the presumption that participants will benefit when pricing assets and liabilities and
that they seek to achieve their best economic interests.

fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use .

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
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SAUDI LIME INDUSTRIES COMPANY
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Fair Yalue Measurement
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,
Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and
Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable,

Classification of assets and liabilities into current or non-current

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position on a current or non-current
basis.

An asset is classified under current assets if:

* The expectation that the asset will be realized or there is an intention to sell or consume it during the normal
business cycle

» The asset is held primarily for trading

= Expect the asset to be realized within 12 months after the statement of financial position date, or

* Being cash or cash equivalent unless it is prohibited to exchange the asset or use it to settle a liabili ty within
at least 12 months from the date of the statement of financial position.

All other assets are classified as non-current assets.

The obligation is considered among the current liabilities in the event of:

= Expect settlement of the liabilities during the normal business cycle

* The liabilities is held mainly for trading purposes

* Expect to settle the liabilities within 12 months after the date of the statement of financial position or

* There is no unconditional right to postpone the settlement of the liabilities for at least 12 months after the
date of the statement of financial position.

* The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current liabilities.

Property, plant and equipment

Property. plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses if any. The initial cost includes the purchase price and any directly attributable cost of bringing the
property, plant and equipment to the operating site and making it operational. Expenses incurred after the
operation of property. plant and equipment, such as repairs, maintenance, and full refurbishment. are included
in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in which they are incurred.
Whete itis clearly shown that the expense has resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected
to be obtained from the use of an asset to a higher extent than the originally defined benchmark, these
expenses are capitalized as an additional cost to the property, plant and equipment.

If significant and important parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment, depreciation is
calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the items of property, plant and
equipment. The estimated useful life of some machines and equipment is as follows:

Titem Depreciation ratio

Buildings and constructions 3-5%
Machinery and equipment 3-20%
Motor vehicles 20-25 %
Tools 10-20 %
Furniture 10-20 %
Improvements to machinery and equipment 20%
Strategic spare parts 5%

Property, plant and equipment are written down to their recoverable amount if their carrying amount exceeds
their estimated recoverable amount. The useful life, residual value, and depreciation method are reviewed
periodically to ensure that the method and period of depreciation are in line with the expected economic
benefit of each item of property, plant and equipment. The change in estimates is accounted for from the
beginning off the financial year in which the change occurs. When the assets and equipment are sold or
disposed of. their cost, accumulated depreciation, and accumulated impairment losses are eliminated from
the accounts and any gain or loss resulting from their disposal is included in profit or loss,

S 12
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SAUDI LIME INDUSTRIES COMPANY
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (CONTINUED)

Capital work in progress includes the purchase price, progress or development costs, and any costs directly
attributable to the asset being constructed or acquired by the Company. Capital work in progress is measured
at cost less any impairment losses recognized. Capital work in progress is depreciated only when assets can
function as management deems appropriate after capitalizing them to the appropriate class of assets.

Strategic spare parts are recognized under property, plant and equipment when they meet the definition of
property, plant and equipment and are otherwise classified as inventories. During year 2022, the Company
implemented this policy and reclassified the strategic spare parts (refer to Note No, 32).

Impairment of assets — property, plant and equipment

The Company assesses at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication that an asset has
been impaired. If such an indication arises, or when an impairment test is required, the Company estimates
the recoverable amount of that asset (or cash-generating unit), The recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-
generating unit) is the fair value of the asset (or cash-generating unit) less costs to sell or value in use,
whichever is greater and is determined for each individual asset unless the asset's cash flow is substantially
independent of that produced by the asset or another group of assets and the recoverable amount is then
assessed as part of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When the carrying amount of an asset
(or cash-generating unit) exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is impaired and is reduced to its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
specific risks of the asset (or cash-generating unit). An impairment loss must be recognized immediately in
profit or loss.

Investments in the associate company

An associate is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture and the company exercises significant influence on it.
A significant influence is the power to participate in the financial decisions and operating policies of the
investee but does not reach control or joint control over those policies. The Company’s investment in the
associate is accounted for using the equity method, according to which the investment in the associate is
recorded in the statement of financial position at cost adjusted for changes in the Company s share in the net
assets of the associate and then adjusted to recognize the Company’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate. In the event that any direct changes in the equity of the associate are
established, the Company shall recognize its share in the change and disclose that. when applicable, in the
statement of changes in equity.

After applying the equity method, the Company determines whether it is necessary to recognize an
impairment loss in the value of its investment in the associate. On each reporting date, the Company checks
whether there is objective evidence of an impairment in the value of the investment in the associate. When
such evidence exists, the Company calculates the amount of the impairment by caleulating the difference
between the fair value of the associate company and the cost of acquisition and records the amount in the
profit or loss.

Right of use assets and leases liabilities

At the contract inception, the company assesses whether the contract contains a lease. The Company
recognizes the right of use asset and lease liabilities in connection with all lease arrangements at which the
company is a lessee.

- 1%
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SAUDI LIME INDUSTRIES COMPANY
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Right of use assets and leases liabilities (CONTINUED)

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognizes the right to use the assets on the lease commencement date (ie the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-oftuse assets are measured at cost less than any accumulated
impairment losses and amortization, adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, lease
payments made on or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Unless the Company
is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the Ieased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognized right-
of-use asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the estimated useful life and lease term.
If the terms of the lease provide for a transfer of ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-
of-use asset reflects the Company’s expectation to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset
is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. Depreciation begins on the lease start date. Right-of-use assets
are presented as a separate line item on the statement of financial position. The Company applies [AS 36 to
determine whether the right-of-use asset is impaired, and the impairment loss is determined as described in
the “Impairment of Non-Financial Assets™ policy.

Lease obligations

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes [ease liabilities measured at the present
value of the lease payments to be made over the lease term. Lease payments include fixed payments
(including embedded fixed payments) less than any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. Lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option that the Company is certain to exercise and payments of
penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects that the Company exercises the option to
terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate are recognized as an expense in
the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

When calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing rate at
the lease start date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the start date, the
amount of the lease obligations is increased, to reflect the accrual of interest and reduce lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the
lease term, a change in secured fixed lease payments, or a change in the valuation for the purchase of the
underlying asset.

Short term leases

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to short-term leases of property, plant and
equipment (ie leases that have a term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). Lease payments under short-term leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at a cost or net realizable value whichever is lower. The cost is determined by using
the weighted average method, The raw materials are valued cost basis or net realizable value whichever is
lower through the weighted average cost. The cost of total production and production in progress includes
the cost of raw materials, direct wages, and indirect operating expenses. When necessary, a provision is made
for slow-moving and obsolete inventories. The net realizable value is the actual or estimated selling price of
the inventories during the ordinary course of business, less the cost of completion of inventory production (if
it needs to be completed) and all necessary expenses expected to be incurred for the sale of inventories.

Inventory of spare parts is valued at cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined on a weighted average
cost basis. Provision for obsolete and slow-moving items (if any) is estimated at the reporting date.

The goods in transit consist of the value of the purchases that the Company has contracted and has not yet
received up to the date of the financial statements taking into consideration that the terms of shipment and
receipt and the returns and risks of the commodity in the possession of the Company.

L
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SAUDI LIME INDUSTRIES COMPANY
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments
Financial assets of low credit value
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether the financial assets carried at amortized cost have a
low credit value. A financial asset is considered to be "impaired" when one or more events have had an
adverse effect on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset.

Presentation of impairment
Losses from provisions for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the total carrying
amount of the total assets.

Trade receivables

Trade and other receivables arc non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market, After initial measurement, these financial assets are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest method less any impairment in its value, in accordance with
IFRS 9 (*Financial Instruments™). Amortized cost is caleulated by calculating any discount or premium on
the acquisition, fees, or costs that represent an integral part of the effective interest method. The amortization
of the effective interest method is included in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,

De-recognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar financial assets or a similar asset)

is derecognized when:

A) The right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired.

B) The Company transfers the right to receive the cash flows from the asset or, in return, bears an obligation
to pay the cash expenses received in full without material delay to another party under the “receipt and
payment™ arrangement; (a) the Company transfers all significant risks and rewards of the asset; (b) the
Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the significant risks and rewards of the
asset but has lost control over that asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to reccive cash flows from the asset or has entered into the

“receipt and payment” atrangement and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and

rewards of the asset or lost control over the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent that the Company

continues to control the asset. In this case. the Company shall also record the relevant obligation. The
transferred asset and the related liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Company holds.

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date. the Company determines whether there is objective evidence that an asset or a group
of financial assets other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is impaired. Impairment losses
are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to have been impaired only if objective evidence of
impairment exists as a result of one or more events occurring after the initial recognition of the asset (“event
of loss incurred™) and the loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or group of assets which can be measured reliably. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtor or group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulties, default or delay in the payment
of principal payments or proceeds, or the possibility of bankruptey or other financial arrangements such as
restructuring of amounts owed to the Company. Also, when observable data indicates that there is a
measurable decrease in estimated future cash flows, such as changes associated with arrears or changes in
economic conditions associated with delays.

If the Company’s share in losses exceeds its share in the associate company, the Company reduces the book
value of its investments to zero, and no additional losses are discontinued, except for legal or expected
obligations incurred or amounts paid on behalf of the investee companies.

Unrealized gains resulting from transactions with investee companies are eliminated according to the equity
method against investment to the extent of the Company’s share in the investee company. and losses are also
eliminated in the same way as unrealized profits, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment
in value,

.
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SAUDI LIME INDUSTRIES COMPANY
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial assets carricd at amortized cost

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Company first determines whether there is an individual
impairment of individually significant financial assets or a group of financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Company has found that no objective evidence of impairment for an individual financial
asset, whether material or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk that
are collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and that were
or being recognized, are not included in the collective assessment of impairment. An impairment loss is
estimated as the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows (excluding expected future credit losses that have not been incurred). After deducting the
present value of expected future cash flows using the average effective interest rate used primarily for the
financial asset.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of the provision account and the loss is recognized
in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. If a positive change occurred in the
subsequent period on an impairment loss that its relation can be determined with events that occurred after
the impairment losses objectively recognized, the previously recognized impairment losses are reversed
through the statement of profit or loss and within the limits of carrying amount of the asset when the
impairment loss is reversed and that does not exceed amortized cost if no impairment loss has previously
been recorded. A financial asset is de-recognized when the Company’s right to receive the cash flows from
the asset expires or when the Company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset to another party.

Financial liabilities

The Company’s financial liabilities include amounts due to trade payables, accrued expenses and other credit
balances. The Company’s financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate method.

Amounts due to trade payables.

Liabilities are recognized at amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether billed
by the supplier or not. payables are classified as current liabilities if payments are due within one year or less
(or during the normal business cycle if they are longer). If they are not, the payables balances are classified
as non-current liabilities.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

Financial liability is de-recognized when the obligation associated with the liability is discharged, canceled,
or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same creditor on significantly
different terms or substantially modified the existing financial liability terms, the change or adjustment is
treated as a de-recognition of the original liability. The new financial liability is recognized and the difference
in the relevant carrying amount is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are eliminated only when the liability is discharged or settled. The difference between
the carrying amount of the liability and the consideration paid and the creditors are recognized in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position when there is an enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liabilities simultaneously. The right in force should
not depend on future events and should be effective in the normal course of business and in the event that the
Company or counterparty is exposed to insolvency or bankruptcy.

Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent on the statement of financial position include of cash on hand and at banks and
short-term deposits, which are not subject to a significant risk of change in value. The book value of these
assefs is approximately equal to their fair value. For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash, and
cash equivalent include cash on hand and bank balances. as it is considered an integral part of the Company’s
cash management,
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SAUDI LIME INDUSTRIES COMPANY
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Employees’ defined benefits obligation

Obligations stated on the statement of financial position relatin g to the employee-defined benefit plan are
measured at the present value of the expected future payments at the date of the financial statements, using
the projected unit credit method, and recorded as non-current liabilities. The defined benefit obligation is
caleulated at the end of each annual reporting period by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit
method. The actuarial evaluation process takes into account the provisions of the Saudi labor law and the
Company’s palicy. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows using commission rates for high-quality corporate bonds registered in the
currency in which the benefits will be paid and have terms that approximate those of the related obligations
(or, if they are not available, use market rates on government bonds). Commission cost is calculated by
applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit obligation balance and this cost is recognized in the profit
or loss,

The cost of the defined benefit obligation is calculated using actuarially determined retirement costs at the
end of the previous financial year, adjusted for significant market fluctuations and any significant one-time
events such as program modification, downsizing, and payment. In the absence of significant market
fluctuations and one-off events, the actuarial obligations are extended based on the as sumptions made at the
beginning of the year. In the event that there are significant changes in assumptions or arrangements during
the year, they must be considered to re-measure these obligations and related costs.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions in the year
in which they occur are recognized in other comprehensive income. Changes in the present value of the
defined benefit obligation resulting from plan modifications or downsizing are recognized directly in the
profit or loss as past service costs.

Short-term emplovee liabilities

Liabilities related 1o benefits due to employees, represented in wages, salaries, annual and sick leaves, and
travel tickets, which are expected to be paid within the twelve months after the end of the fiscal year in
which the employees provide related services, are recorded and measured in the financial statements by the
undiscounted amounts expected to be paid upon settlement of obligations,

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construetion or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a period of time to get it ready for use or sale are recognized as part of the cost of that assct. All other
costs are recorded as expenses in the period in which they are due. Borrowing costs are the interest costs and
other costs incurred by the entity in related to the process of borrowing funds.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencics are translated into Saudi Riyals using the exchange rates prevailing at the
time of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting
date are translated into Saudi Riyals at the rates of exchange prevailing at the reporting date. Exchange gains
or losses are recognized as an expense or revenue in profit or loss, Non-monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies at fair value are retranslated at the rates of exchange ruling at the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at fair value are
iranslated to Saudi Riyals at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the date of determining the transaction. In
the case of non-monetary assets whose change in fair value is recognized directly in other comprehensive
income, foreign exchange differences are recognized directly in other comprehensive income. For non-
monetary assets whose change in fair value is recognized directly in profit or loss, all foreign exchange
differences arc included in profit or loss.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or expected to be received by the Company
for the sale of goods or the provision of services through the Company’s normal activities. Revenue is shown
net of VAT, returns. rebates, and discounts,
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SAUDI LIME INDUSTRIES COMPANY
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (CONTINUED)

Revenue is recognized when it can be measured reliably, and the entity will likely receive future economic
benefits. Recognition requirements are met in accordance with the nature and timing of the fulfilment of the
performance obligations and the significant payment terms for the sale of the Company’s products, as the
customers obtains the control over the products upon delivering the goods to them and acknowledging of
their acceptance at their site.

[nvoices are issued and recognized as revenue at that time. Credit bills are usually due between 30 to 90 days.
Invoices are recognized as revenue net of discounts applied to the products sold. For contracts that allow the
customer to return products, in accordance with IFRS 15 Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is
probable that there will be no material reversal of the amount of accumulated income that is recognized.
Accordingly, the amount of the income recognized is adjusted to the estimated recoveries that are estimated
based on historical data.

The Company applies revenues from contracts with customers based on the five-step model as described in

IFRS (15) as follows:

1) Identify the contract with the customer: A contract is an agreement between two or more parties that
creates enforceable rights and obligations and determine the standards that shall be met.

2) Identify the performance obligation in the contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract
with a customer to transfer to the customer.

3) Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer. except for
the amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

4) Allocate the transaction price for the performance obligation: for the contract that has more than a
performance obligation. the Company will allocate the transaction price for each obligation in an amount
determine the value of the consideration which the Company will pay, it expects to be due upon fulfilling
the performance obligation.

5) Recognize revenue when a performance obligation satisfied.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to include economic benefits to
settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably. Provisions for future
operating loss are not calculated. In the case of several similar obligations, the probability of a resource flow
for settlement is determined by considering the category of obligations as a whole. An allowance is
recognized when the probability of a flow of resources in respect of any item included in the same category
of liabilities is minimal. Provisions are measured at the present value of the best management estimates of
the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the financial period.

The present value is determined by discounting the expected future cash flows that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks associated to that obligation.

Expenses

Sellljing and distribution expenses are those expenses resulting from the Company’s efforts of marketing, sales
and distribution depariments. All other expenses, excluding the cost of revenues and finance charges, are
classified as general and administrative expenses. Distribution of joint expenses is made between the cost of’
revenues, selling, and distribution expenses, and general and administrative expenses, when necessary, on a
consistent basis.

Dividends
The interim dividends are recognized in the period in which they are approved by the Board of Directors till
being approved by the general assembly of the shareholders.
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SAUDI LIME INDUSTRIES COMPANY
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

If no potential ordinary shares are issued by the Company, the basic earnings per share shall be equal to the
diluted earnings per share. Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity
halders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial
year.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by adjusting the figures used to determine earnings per share,
considering the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that will be on the assumption that
all potential ordinary shares are converted into existing shares.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are recognized in the financial statements only when the use of economic resources to
settle an existing or anticipated legal obligation as a result of past events is probable and the amount expected
to be repaid can be estimated significantly. Otherwise, contingent liabilities are disclosed unless the
possibility of an economic loss is remote,

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed when economic benefits
arising from past events are probable.

Value added tax.

Revenues. expenses and assets are recognized net of value added tax. except in the following cases:

» If the value-added tax is due on the acquisition of assets or services that are not recovered from the
competent tax authority, in this case the value-added tax is recognized as part of the cost of purchasing assets
or part of the expense item, as the case may be.

* Receivables and payables are shown, including the amount of VAT,

The net value-added tax that can be recovered from - or paid to - the competent tax authority is recorded
within the receivables and credits in the statement of financial position.

Zakat

The Company is subject to the instructions of the Zakat, Tax and Customs Authority in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia, Zakat is provided according to the accrual principle. The zakat provision is calculated according to
the zakat base or the adjusted net profit, whichever is higher, Any differences between the provision and the
final assessment are recorded when the final assessment is approved, at which time the provision is closed.
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SAUDI LIME INDUSTRIES COMPANY
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

OPERATING SEGMENTS

Operating segment is a separate and distinct segment of the Company engaged in business activities that
result in the recognition of revenues or expenses. Operating segments are disclosed on the basis of internal
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for resource allocation,
performance evaluation, and strategic decision-making on operational segments. Operating segments with
similar economic characteristics, products, services, and similar customer categories are aggregated and
recorded where possible as sectors to be reported,

Basis of division

The Company has the following strategic sectors. These sectors provide different services and are managed
separately because they have different economic characteristics - such as sales growth trends. rates of return,
and capital investment - and they also have different marketing strategies.

The following is a summary of the operations of each sector report,

Sector reports Operations

Limestone sector Includes the manufacturing of quicklime in various sizes; hydrated lime in all
kinds of packing; and dololime of all sizes

Includes supplying different sizes through crushing processes, as well as grinding
and sorting processes for those sizes for the manufacture of glass and filters
Includes the manufacturing of sandy building blocks, as well as cladding bricks
for building facades, from sandstone

Serves all major sectors

Carbonate sector
Block sector

Support services
sector

Due to the nature of the Company’s business and the structure of its management. it is not possible to allocate
the items of current assets and liabilities to the various operating segments. All the Company’s assets are
located within Saudi Arabia.

Information on segment reporting

The information for each segment is listed below. The total profit of the segment is used to measure
performance because management considers that this information is most appropriate to assess the results of
the relevant sectors relating to other enterprises operating in the same industries.

{Saudi Riyal)
Support

Limestone Carhonate services
2022 sector sector Block sector sector Total
Revenues 106,962,690 22,303,784 13,114,932 - 142,381.406
Cost of revenues (59,225,783) (12.490,119) (7,344,362) - (79,060,264)
Gross profit 47,736,907 9,813,665 5,770,570 - 63,321.142
2021
Revenues 99,377,712 21,429,130 10.587.000 - 131,593,842
Cost of revenues (35.768.016) (11,452,313) (5,657,983) - (72.878.312)
Gross profit 43_809.696 9,976,817 4929017 - 58.715.530
December 31, 2022
Property, plant and equipment 130,883,865 3,906,981 15,627,924 44,930,282 195,349,052
December 31, 2021
Property, plant and equipment 126,210,893 4,345,564 15,437,349 41,391,088 187,384,896
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SAUDI LIME INDUSTRIES COMPANY
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

8. RIGHT OF USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

(Saudi Riyal)

2022 2021

Right of use assets
Cost
Balance at January |1, 4,730,123 4,730,123
Additions 142,157 -
Balance at December 31, 4,872,280 4,730.123
Accumulated amortization
Balance at January]1, 1,901,638 1,352,881
Depreciation for the year (note 25) 439,714 548,757

2,341,352 1,901.638
Balance at December 31, 2,530,928 2,828,485
Lease liabilities
Balance at January 1, 2,636,445 3.,048.406
Additions during the year 142,157 -
Paid during the year , (519,705) (519,069)
Finance cost (note 26) 113,461 107,108
Balance at December 31, 2,372,358 2,636,445
Current portion 420,308 519,110
Non-current portion 1,952,050 2,117,335

2. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE
The Company owns a 50% share of the associate company “Saudi Insulating Bricks Company™ and is
accounted for according to the equity method.

Ownership (Saudi Riyal)
percentage
2022 2021
Saudi Insulating Bricks Company %50 23,677.774 23,508,965

The Saudi Insulating Bricks Company (limited liability Company) is a Saudi Company with GCC capital,
registered in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia under Commercial Registration No. 1010260635 on Muharram
10, 1430H (Corresponding January 7. 2009).

The activity of the associate, as stated in its commercial register, is represented in the general construction
of residential buildings, the retail sale of building materials such as cement. blocks. gypsum, cement tiles.
the manufacture of hollow cement blocks and bricks, and the wholesale sale of bricks, blocks, tiles. stone,
marble, ceramics, and porcelain. The associate also has a branch of the Saudi Insulating Bricks Company
in Jeddah. The associate operates in the production of light insulating bricks, wholesale trade in light
insulating bricks, construction materials and equipment, and general contracting for buildings.

On March 26, 2020, the General Assembly of the Saudi Insulating Bricks Company approved its sale,
liquidation. or merger. after the cessation of its operations, knowing that there were no actual indications
of the possibility of an actual sale on that date. On May 31, 2022, the associate company’s board of directors
instructed the executive management to begin taking legal measures to liquidate the Insulating Bricks
Company and terminate its license and commercial registration. The actual liquidation process began in the
year 2022. Accordingly, the investment in the associate was classified within current assets as al December
31, 2022.
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9. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)
The movement of investment in an associate is as follows:

(Saudi Riyal)
2022 2021
Balance at January 25,008,965 26,248,455
Share in results of an associate company (1,331,191) (1.239.490)
23,677,774 25,008,965
Provision for impairment losses of the investment - (1.500,000)
Balance as at December 31, 23,677,774 23,508.965
Current portion 23,677,774 -

Non-current portion 5

23,508,965

During the year 2022, and as a result of the start of the liquidation process of the associate, the management
has more accurate and realistic financial information about the recoverable amount of its investment in the
associate, which led it to the reversed of the impairment provision previously recorded in the amount of

SR1,500,000.
Summary of the financial information about associated com pany

The tables below provide the summarized financial information of the associate company. The summarized
information reflects the amounts appearing in the financial statements available to the relevant investee

company and not the Company’s share in those amounts:

Statement of financial position (Saudi Riyal)
2022 2021
Total Non-Current Assets - 45,848,344
Total Current Assets 50,712,278 5,672,774
Total Current Liabilities (3,356,726) (1,503,184)
Net assets 47,355,552 50,017,934
Company's share 50% 50%
Share in the associate 23,677,774 25,008,965
Impairment loss provision on the investment - (1,500,000)
Book value of investment in associate 23,677,774 23,508,965
Statement of comprehensive income (Saudi Rival)
2022 2021
Gross profit - 161,102
Operating loss 886,040 (2,139,745)
Net loss (2.374,827) (2.478.979)
Comprehensive loss (2,374,827 (2,478,979)
Company’s share 50% 50%
Share in the associate (1,187,414) (1.239.490)
Zakat Settlement (143,777) =
Share in results of the associate (1,331,191) (1,239,490)
-24 -
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SAUDI LIME INDUSTRIES COMPANY
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

INVENTORIES
(Saudi Riyal)
2022 2021

Spare parts (Note 32) 15,759,340 17,913,592
Finished goods 8,772,834 6,524,587
Work in progress 4,027,906 5,645,229
Raw materials 224,913 88.071

28,784,993 30,171,479
Provision of obsoleted and slow-moving inventory (1,421,803) (1.240,680)

27,363,190 28,930,799

The movement in the provision of obsoleted and slow-moving inventories during the vear December 31, is
as follows:

(Saudi Riyal)
2022 2021
Balance at Januvary 1, 1,240,680 1.240,680
Charged for the year 181,123 .
Balance as at December 31, 1,421,803 1,240,680
TRADE RECEIVABLES
(Saudi Riyal)
2022 2021
Trade receivables 35,992,347 38.228,908
Expected credit loss (3,743,184) (3,612,004)
32,249,163 34,616,904
The movement in the ECL during the year ended December 31 is as follows:
(Saudi Riyal)
2022 2021
Balance at January 31, 3,612,004 3.612,004
Provided during the year 131,180 -
Balance as at December 31, 3,743,184 3,612,004

The aging analysis for the trade receivables as at December 31 is as follows.

Balances past due

From 1day From 91 days From 181 More than Total
to 90 days to 180 days days to 365 365 days
days
SR SR SR SR SR
ff.;;"‘b” 3L 5863627 6,482,145 22,338 3624237 35992347
?;;fmber 3L, 26,266,297 3,944,184 4,468,302 3,550,125 38,228,908

The credit period granted to customers ranges from 30 1o 90 days, and no commissions are calculated on
these accounts. The Company records expected credit losses based on several factors, including the age of
receivables, and the linancial position of customers. where available. Concentrations of credit risk are
limited due 1o the large and unrelated customer base.
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SAUDI LIME INDUSTRIES COMPANY
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

12. BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTY

During the year, the Company conducted transactions with the related party, Saudi Insulating Bricks
Company, an associate. The terms of these transactions and expenses have been approved by the
Company’s management.

Due to a related party comprises the following:
(Saudi Riyal)

2022 2021
Saudi Insulating Bricks Company 18,756,360 1,294
Transactions with a related party comprises the following:
(Saudi Riyal)
Nature of the transaction 2022 2021
Payments received for the return of investment in 19,500,000 -
an associate
Transaction on behalf 2,496,746 793.205
Collection on behalf 1,749,362 505,709
Purchase 2,450 42,938
The benefits of the key management personnel incurred during the year ended December 31, are as follows:
(Saudi Riyal)
2022 2021
Short term benefits 2,516,560 2,106,670
Employee defined benefits obligation (Balance at 1,199,557 117.602
the end of the year)
3,716,117 2224272

13. PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER DEBIT BALANCES
(Saudi Riyal)

December 31,2022 December 31, 2021

Advances to suppliers 5,469,643 3,805,362
[PO expenses 1,549,592 -
Prepaid expenses 1,287,144 1,444,406
Staff receivables 299,322 394,513
Margins on letter of guarantee — Note (30) 252,457 252,457
Refundable deposits 46,754 46,754
Value Added Tax - 39,325
Others 9,370 =

8,914,282 5.982.817

14. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(Saudi Riyal)

2022 2021
Short term deposits 19.000,000 =
Cash at Bank 5,909,342 25,018,752
Cash on hand 39,357 96,132
24,948,699 25,114,884

15. STATUTORY RESERVE

As required by the Company’s bylaws, the Company should transfer 10% of its net profit for the year to
the statutory reserve until the reserve equals 30% of share capital. The statutory reserve is not available for
distribution as dividends to the shareholders.

-26-
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SAUDI LIME INDUSTRIES COMPANY
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMRBER 31, 2022

16. OTHER RESERVE

The movement on other reserve related to employees defined benefits durin g the year is as follows:

{Saudi Riyal)

2022 2021
Balance at January 1, (5,024,880) (4.484.899)
Re-measurements charged on OCI 282,327 (539.981)
Balance at December 31, (4,742,553) (5.024.880)

DIVIDENDS

On April 25, 2022, the Extraordinary General Assembly approved the distribution of dividends to
shareholders in the amount of SR 10 M from the retained earnings on December 31, 2021. The of accrued
dividends and unpaid to shareholders as at December 3 1, 2022, amounted to SR 1.3 million (December 31,

2021: SR 1.2 million).

18. EMPLOYEE DEFINED BENEFITS OBLIGATION
Saudi Rival

2022 2021
Balance at January 1, 8,856.591 10,558,971
Current service cost 1,162,020 1,126.378
Finance cost 258,612 170.047
Re-measurements charged on OCI (282,327) 539,981
Closed advanced payments (351,873) -
Payments during the year (1,470,981) (3.538.786)

8,172,040 8,856.591
Advance payments to employees {763,676) (927.071)
Balance as at December 31, 7,408,364 7,929,520
Actuarial assumptions:
The main actuarial assumptions are:
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Discount rate 4.98% 1.92%
Salary increases rate for the first period 2% 1.01%
Sensitivity analysis on significant assumptions:
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Discount rate 0.5% (+/-)
Increase 7:753,576 7,691,773
Decrease 8,620,889 10,332,267
Change in salary 0.5% (+/-)
Increase 8,630,874 10.330,803
Decrease 7,740,851 7.672,064
19. LOANS

The Company obtained banking facilities from local banks in the form of long-term loans (Murabaha and
Tawarrug). The balance of these facilities as at December 31, 2022, amounted to SR 14.6 million
(December 31, 2021: SR 34.1 million), and commission rates are charged based on SIBOR plus agreed
margin. The due installments are paid quarterly, These facilities were agreed upon in accordance with the
terms stipulated in the facility contracts and are guaranteed by promissory notes. The following is a
description of the facilities:

Saudi Riyal
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Long term loan = Current portian 12,310,700 20,140,413
Long term loan - Non-Current portion 2,300,000 13,950,003
14,610,700 34,090.416
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SAUDI LIME INDUSTRIES COMPANY
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2022

20. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CREDIT BALANCES

Saudi Riyal
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Accrued salaries, wages and benefits 4,184,057 4.352,353
Advance from customers 2,607,952 1,943,422
Accrued expenses 2,100,569 2,230,924
Board of directors’ remunerations 1,417,500 1,430,000
Professional consultations 812,394 1,325,420
Value-added tax 354,334 -
Accrued professional fees 315,625 307,500
Employee payables 16,246 25,578
Accrued loan’s commission - 507,216
Other provisions (¥) 4,710,900 5,136,174

16,519,577 17.258,587

(*) The Company recognizes a provision for items for which the determination of the amount due is
uncertain, but it is considered that there will be a future cash flow to external parties, Provisions are
measured at the best estimate of the amount expected to become payable. The estimation of these provisions
depends on the Company’s management after consulting specialized and independent parties with previous
experience about these matters. The Company’s management decided not to disclose the details of the
provisions due to harm to the Company’s position in potential claims from other parties.

21. ZAKAT PROVISION
The Company submitted the financial statements and zakat returns to the Zakat, Tax and Customs
Authority. Zakat is due at the rate of 2.5% of the zakat base or adjusted net profit, whichever is higher, The
following are the most important components of the Company’s zakat base according to zakat regulations:

Saudi Riyal
2022 2021
Owner equity 221,156,249 231,156.249
Non-current assets (238,648.285) (213,722.3486)
Beginning balance provision and other adjustment 56,086,588 30.357.183
Adjusted net profit 20,364,161 13,983,876
Zakat base 58,958,713 61,774,962

As a result of the adjustment described in note 32 (“Prior vear restatement”), the balance of non-current
assets and thus the balance of the zakat base for the year 2021 was adjusted. The effect of the adjustment
was not reflected in the zakat expense and provision for the year 2021 due to its immaterial ity.

The movement of zakat provision during the year ended December 31, is as follows:

Saudi Riyal

2022 2021
Balance as at January | 1,591,660 1,183,150
Charged during the year 1,473,968 1,596,666
Payments (1,562,210) (1.188,156)
Balance as at December 31 1,503,418 1,591,660

Status of Zakat

The Company has submitted zakat declarations up to the year ended December 31, 2021, according to
which the Company has paid the zakat due and obtained a valid zakat certificate until April 30, 2023.
During the year 2022, the Company finalized the zakat assessment for the year 2016 with the Zakat, Tax
and Customs Authority (“ZATCA™), and the zakat declarations for the years from 2017 to 2021 are still
under review by the authority. The Authority requested an examination of the years 2017 and 2018 and the
Company is currently working on providing the Authority with the requirements.

IR
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(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

22. REVENUES

Saudi Riyal
2022 2021
Local revenue 122,260,245 102,349,328
Export revenue 23,453,441 31,572,946
Returns and discounts (3,332,280) (2.328,432)
142,381.406 131,593,842
23. COST OF REVENUES
Saudi Riyal
2022 2021
Cost of raw materials 28,603,334 26,074,522
Salaries, wages, and others 13,820,810 13,624,524
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 12,410,852 9,992,832
Equipment rent 7,246,579 6,419,007
Maintenance 5.886,439 6.789.607
Quarry fees 1.754,462 2,411,558
Health insurance 741,636 700,898
Water and electricity 618,865 526,076
Hospitality and cleaning 383,589 348,988
Penalty and government expenses 392,212 386,195
Insurance 331,954 268.368
Consumable tools 27,259 20,789
Other 6,842,273 5,314,948
79,060,264 72.878.312
24, SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES
Saudi Riyal
2022 2021
Shipping and transportation of limestone 26,805,916 24,976,197
Salaries. wages, and others 1,331,626 1.727.413
Advertising and marketing 1,330,885 887,440
Water, electricity, and fuel 251,154 518,039
Maintenance 138,607 350,981
Sales commissions 137,241 512,810
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 31,484 256,149
Other 386,896 473,575
30,413,809 29.702.604
25. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Saudi Rival
2022 2021
Salaries, wages, and others 9,272,612 6.990.733
Bonus 2,506,422 2,456,000
Board of directors’ remunerations 1,430,000 1,430,000
Professional fees 1,331,408 3,519,726
Health insurance 654,249 475,028
Depreciation of right of use assets 439,714 548,757
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 395,771 128.420
Consumable material 158,472 220,099
Water, electricity. and fuel 104,777 97.835
Other 781,020 3,357,211
17,074,445 19,223,809

.20-
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SAUDI LIME INDUSTRIES COMPANY
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

FINANCE COST
Saudi Riyal
2022 2021
Employees defined benefits obligation 258,612 170,047
Bank interest and commission 216,476 329,990
Right of use assets 113,461 107,108
588,549 607,145
OTHER REVENUES
Saudi Rival
2022 2021
Gain from sale of property, plant and equipment 39,999 3,646,117
Income from deposits commissions 255,176 -
Other miscellaneous revenues 1,722.892 1,268,808
2,018,067 4915015

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding.

Earnings per share had been calculated for the year ended on December 31, 2022, based on the weighted
average number of outstanding shares during the year, which aggregated 20,000,000 shares (2021:
20.000,000 shares). There are no dilutive or potential ordinary shares.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in
foreign exchange rates, Foreign exchange risk arises when future business transactions and recognized
assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency different from the Company’s presentation currency,
The Company’s exposure to foreign exchange risk is primarily limited to transactions in US dollars. The
Company’s management believes that it has very limited exposure to currency risks linked to the US dollar.
The fluctuation in exchange rates against other currencies is monitored continuously.

Credit risk

Credit risks are the risks that expose the Company to a financial loss if the customer or the counterparty in
a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations.

The Company is exposed to credit risk on asset balances as follows:
Saudi Riyal

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Trade receivables 32,249,163 34,616,904
Other debit balances 598,533 733.049
Cash at banks 24,909,342 25.018.752
57,757,038 60,368,705

The carrying value of the financial assets represents the maximum exposure to credit risks.

The Company manages the credit risk regarding trade receivables by monitoring them in accordance with
defined policies and procedures. The Company seeks to reduce credit risk regarding customers by create
credit limits for each customer and monitoring uncollected receivables on an ongoing basis.

The concentration of trade receivables is represented in four customers, as they constitute 51% of the total
receivables as at December 31, 2022. and their sales amounted to 42% of the Company’s total sales during
the year 2022 (December 31, 2021: 52% and 46%, respectively).

-30-
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SAUDI LIME INDUSTRIES COMPANY
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

30.

3L

liquidity risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to meet its obligations and cause the
other party to incur a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk on asset balances as follows:

Saudi Rival

Less than one More than a
December 31, 2022 Book value year year
Lease liabilities 2,679,905 504,425 2,175,480
Long-term loans 14,949,481 12,630,383 2,319,098
Due to a related party 18,756,360 18,756,360 -
Trade payables 15,220,137 15,220,137 -
Other credit balances 9,200,725 9,200,725 -
Dividends to shareholders 1,377,531 1,377,531 3
Total 62,184,139 57,689.561 4,494,578
December 31, 2021
Lease liabilities 3.199.610 519,705 2,679,905
Long-term loans 35.697.291 20,747,810 14,949,481
Due to a related party 1,294 1,294 -
Trade payables 12,480,299 12.480.299 -
Other credit balances 10,178,991 10.178.99] -
Dividends to shareholders 1,223.280 1,223,280 -
Total 62,780,765 45,151,379 17.629.386

Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring on a regular basis and ensuring that sufficient funds, banking, and
other credit facilities are available to meet the future obligations of the Company.

Market risk

Market price risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market
prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates, which will affect the Company’s income or the
value of financial assets. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable limits, while optimizing return,

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company has contingent liabilities represented in letters of guarantee as at December 31, 2022 in the
amount of SR3,525,890 and a cash margin of SR252,457 (2021: SR 3,922,479, SR252,457) in addition to
letters of credit amounted of SR 1.029,318 (2021: nil).

There are contractual capital obligations related to capital work in progress amounting to SR 9.1 million.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS TO THE DATE OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
According to the Company’s management, there are no events after the date of the report and before the
issuance of these financial statements that may require modification or disclosure in these financial
statements,

e
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SAUDI LIME INDUSTRIES COMPANY
(Closed Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2022

COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation of the
financial statements. and this did not result in any impact on the net profit or equity.

Prior year restatement

The Company’s management discovered an accounting error during the wvear 2022 related to the
classification of strategic spare parts within the inventory item instead of the property. plant, and equipment
item. Accordingly, the management identified and reclassified the strategic spare parts. The following is
the adjustment on the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2021:

December 31, December
2021 31,2021
Saudi Riyals Saudi Riyals Saudi Riyals
Befaore Restatement After

restatement restatement
Property, plant, and equipment 185.293.214 2,091,682 187.384,896
Inventory 31,022,481 (2.091,682) 28,930,799
216,315,695 - 216,315,695

During the year 2022, the Company implemented this policy and reclassitied the strategic spare parts for
the comparative year under the property, plant and equipment item with an amount of SR 2.1 million. and
there was no material impact on the profit or loss for the vear 2021, as the total depreciation charge for the
strategic spare parts for the year 2021 amounted to SR 53,000 has been recorded in year 2022 — refer to
note No. (7).

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on Shawwal 6, 1444 H (corresponding
April 26, 2023G).

w37

91



A\
AR

AR

2
A\

SN SIS S SIS

SRS VR SIS VSN

5 oy My Am oy My i

S\=

T o o g g
S I S

S A R
G A

S\=

A\
AR

AR

AR
AR



